
 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: Tuesday, 14th September, 2021 
Time: 6.00 pm. 

 
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, Floor One, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

 
Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 
 
1   Apologies  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

 
3   Urgent Items of Business  

 

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 
4   Minutes  4 - 8 

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held 22nd June 2021 and to note the actions list 
appended thereto. 

 

 
5   Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

2021/2022  
9 - 13 

 To note the Committee’s 2021/22 Work Programme  
 
6   Notes of a meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee Members  
14 - 15 

 Notes of an informal meeting of the Committee’s membership held 12th  

Public Document Pack



July 2021. 
 
7   Call in: Pennines Township Funds 2021/2022  16 - 41 

 The Committee to consider two funding decisions, made by Pennines 
Township Committee on 15th July 2021,  that have been called-in by 
two Members of the Council. 

 

 
8   Updated Communications Plan/Strategy  

 

 Head of Communications to present  
 
9   Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2021-22: 

Quarter 1 Performance Update  
42 - 68 

 
10   Council Tax Discount for Care Leavers  69 - 71 

 Head of Revenues and Benefits to report  
 
11   Budget 2022/23 to 2024/25 - Guidelines, Timetable and Budget 

Update  
72 - 91 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Chief Finance Officer. 

 

 
12   3rd & 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints  92 - 102 
 
13   Finance Update Report Quarter 1 2021/22  103 - 135 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Chief Finance Officer. 

 

 

 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members 
Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor Stephen Anstee 
Councillor David Bamford Councillor Allen Brett 
Councillor Michael Holly (Chair) Councillor Peter Joinson 
Councillor Kallum Nolan Councillor Shaun O'Neill (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Faisal Rana Councillor Linda Robinson 
Councillor Donna Williams Councillor Elsie Wraighte 



 

 

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
Peter Thompson 
Committee Services 
Floor 2 
Number One Riverside 
Rochdale   
OL16 1XU 
 
Telephone - 01706 924715 
E-mail – peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday 22nd June 2021 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Holly (Chair); Councillors Anstee, O'Neill, Faisal Rana, 
Robinson and Wraighte 
 
OFFICERS:  N. Thornton (Director of Resources), J. Rooney (Assistant 
Director – Neighbourhoods, Information, Customers and Communities), A. 
Jan and V. Clarke (Neighbourhoods Directorate), S. Smith, S. Knowles and A. 
James (Resources Directorate) 
 

1 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Brett, Councillor 
Joinson, Councillor Nolan and Councillor Donna Williams. 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 

4 MINUTES 
Resolved: 

1. That the Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 25th March 2021 be approved as a correct 
record. 

2. That the Actions List arising from the meeting of the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 25th March 2021 be noted. 

 
5 CORPORATE OVERVIEW AN SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 

PROGRAMME 2021/2022 
Following on from the Work Programme Planning Session held on 27th May 
2021, Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2021/2022, 
which outlined the programme of reports to be presented during the 
2021/2022 municipal year. 
 
Resolved: 

1. The Committee’s Work Programme 2021/2022 be noted. 
 

6 RESOURCES AND NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLANS 2020-21: 
QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
The Committee scrutinised a joint report of the Director of Resources and the 
Director of Neighbourhoods which provided an update on progress at the end 
of Quarter 4 (1st January – 31st March 2021) towards achievement of the 
targets contained in the Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 and 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate Plan 2020-21. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



Discussion took place about the impact of Covid on Directorates and the 
ability to deliver the targets that had been set and staff throughout the Council 
were praised for all their efforts throughout the pandemic. 
 
It was agreed that the strategic plan dealing with the ongoing and future 
impact of Covid, be presented to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020/2021 
- Quarter 4 (1st January – 31st March 2021) be noted; 

2. That the strategic plan dealing with the ongoing and future impact of 
Covid, be presented to a future meeting of the Committee; 

 
7 CUSTOMER CONTACT CENTRE 

The Committee received a presentation on the Council’s Customer Contact 
Centre from the Assistant Director (Information, Customers and Communities) 
and the Transformation Project Manager. 
 
The presentation highlighted current usage of the Contact Centre and how 
this had been utilised during the ongoing Covid pandemic and also outlined 
future development plans. 
 
Members of the Committee were invited to visit the Contact Centre to observe 
how it operated in practice. 
 
In response to some of the questions and comments raised by members of 
the Committee, the Transformation Project Manager advised that: 

 Statistics were obtained of number of repeat calls, first time calls that 
resolved a customer issue and abandoned calls; 

 There was an trial being implemented relating to fly tipping and the end 
to end customer experience; 

 There were staff who were able to converse in a number of community 
languages to assist customers; 

 In relation to home working, there was support in place for staff in the 
form of regular team meetings and briefings where any issues could be 
raised; 

 
Resolved: 

1. That the presentation on the Customer Contact Centre be noted. 
 
 

8 ROCHDALE BOROUGH LIBRARIES STRATEGY 
The Committee received a presentation on the Rochdale Borough Libraries 
Strategy from the Assistant Director Assistant Director (Information, 
Customers and Communities) and the Libraries and Customer Services 
Manager. 
 
The presentation outlined how libraries had adapted and changed to support 
residents during the ongoing Covid pandemic. 
 

Page 5



Members noted the importance and significance of libraries to local residents 
and welcomed the offer of further updates as the libraries offer and strategy 
further developed. 
 
The Committee were advised that the Borough Libraries Strategy would be 
refreshed in March 2022 and the Committee would be part of the process. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the presentation on the Rochdale Borough Libraries Strategy be 
noted. 

 
9 FINAL OUTTURN REPORT 2020/21 

The Committee scrutinised the report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
advised of the Council’s Final Outturn position for 2020/2021. 
 
Members of the Committee asked questions relating to specific elements of 
the submitted report that were answered by the Deputy Chief Finance Officer 
and the Head of Internal Audit.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Council’s Final Outturn position for 2020/2021 be noted. 
 

Page 6



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
Actions List (after 22nd June 2021 meeting) 
 
ISSUE/MEETING 
REQUESTED 

ACTION RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER(S) 

TIMESCALE OUTCOME 

Townships Plan 2020-
2022 
 

Chair and Vice Chair of the 
Committee to meet to consider the 
establishment of a study group to 
examine the role of Township 
Committees. 
 

Peter Thompson Ongoing   

Property Growth Fund 
Sub-Committee 

Performance reports, which are 
presented to the Property Growth 
Fund Sub-Committee, to be further 
presented to this Committee, to 
scrutinise performance etc. 

Chief Finance Officer Ongoing  Report to an 
informal meeting of 
the Committee’s 
membership on 12th 
July 2021 

Draft Digital Strategy Report outlining the Council’s Draft 
Digital Strategy 

Assistant Director – 
Neighbourhoods -
(Information, Customers 
and Communities) 

March 2021 Report/presentation 
to September 
2021’s committee 
meeting 

Council’s 
Communications 
Priorities 

Director of Neighbourhoods to 
submit a report to a future meeting 
of the Committee regarding the 
Council’s ‘communications 
priorities’ 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods/Assistant 
Director (Information, 
Customers and 
Communities) 

In 2021/2022 
Municipal Year 
 

Report/presentation 
to September 
2021’s committee 
meeting 

Minutes of GMCA 
Scrutiny Committee 
meetings 

Future agendas for meetings of 
Corporate O&S Committee, 
wherever possible, to include the 
minutes, of meetings of Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority 
Scrutiny Committees.   
 

Peter Thompson Future meetings of 
the Corporate 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee  

Ongoing  

P
age 7



Health Related 
Absences 

The Head of Workforce and 
Organisational Development to 
provide Members of the 
Committee with a briefing note 
which compares Rochdale 
Council’s performance, relating to 
health related absences, with the 
other authorities in Greater 
Manchester. 

Head of Workforce and 
Organisational 
Development 

During 2021/2022 Referred to newly 
established 
Employment and 
Equalities 
Committee 

Strategic Plan – Covid-
19 

A report outlining the Strategic Plan 
dealing with the ongoing and future 
impact of Covid-19, be presented to a 
future meeting of the Committee. 

John Rooney During 2021/2022 A report to a future 
meeting of the 
Committee 

Local Government 
Ombudsman’s Annual 
report 

Clarification on which Committee(s) 
should consider this report 

Peter Thompson From 2021/2022 
onwards 

Submission to both 
Audit and 
Governance and 
Corporate O&S 
Committees as the 
remit  of the report 
covers areas of 
responsibility 
appertaining to both 
of these 
Committees 

Insurance Claims 
Report 

The Committee requests that future 
reports include details of 
associated ‘claims cost mitigation 
to the authority’. 

Martin Nixon Report to the 
Committee in the 
autumn of 2021 

 

P
age 8



 
 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022 
 

Who are we? 
 
The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 12 Members 
(broadly reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions 
of the Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see 
the how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline 
dates are as follows:   

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline 
Agenda Publication 
Deadline 

Date of meeting 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee  
Thursday, 10th June 2021 Monday,14th June 2021 Tuesday, 22nd June 2021 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 2nd September 2021 Monday, 6th September 2021 

Tuesday, 14th September 

2021 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 4th November 2021 Monday, 8th November, 2021 

Tuesday, 16th November 

2021 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 27th January 2022 Monday, 31st January 2022 

Tuesday, 8th February 

2022 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 10th March 2022 Monday, 14th March, 2022 Tuesday, 22nd March 2022 

 
 
What we do 
 
The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors.  
 
How we do it 
 
The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are: 
 

 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 
methodology. 

 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 
service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors; corporate performance monitoring; corporate financial 
monitoring and the annual budget development consultation, and for 
overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and Directors. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals. 

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate. 

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance. 
 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 

performance. 
 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 

external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee). 
 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 

Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council. 

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate. 

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews. 

 Consider Annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 10



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 
2021/2022 

 
22nd June 2021 

 
 
12th July 2021 (Informal Meeting) 
 
Property Investments - Performance 
and Risk -  

Financial scrutiny of the activities 
of the Property Growth Fund Sub-
Committee 

 
 
14th September 2020 
 
Work Programme  To note the Committee’s Work 

Programme 
Call-in of a Pennines Township 
Committee decision 

 

Directorate Plans 2021/2022 – 1st 
Quarter - Resources and 
Neighbourhoods Directorates 

 

Corporate Complaints - Update Financial scrutiny 
Comprehensive Financial Update  Financial scrutiny 
Draft Communications Plan/Strategy Presentation  
Council Tax Discount for care leavers  Scrutiny of proposals 
Budget 2022/23 to 2024/25 - Guidelines, 
Timetable and Budget Update 

Scrutiny of proposals 

 
 
16th November 2020 
 
Work Programme  To note the Committee’s Work 

Programme  
Call-in/Member items/other referrals    

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2020/2021) 
 Resources Directorate 
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate 

Performance management and 
monitoring 

Delegated Approvals – Summary 
Report 2020/21 

 

Final Outturn Report 2020/2021  

Presentation – Libraries Strategy  

Presentation – Contact Centre  

Page 11



Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2020/2021 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation – including Revenue 
Budget and Capital Programme 
proposals 

Financial scrutiny 

Insurance Claims Report (including vfm 
presentation from the Council’s 
insurance brokerage representatives) 

Financial scrutiny 

Digital Delivery Plan Scrutiny of proposals 
Artificial Intelligence (update from March 
2021 meeting) 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Directorate Plan Updates (2nd Quarter 
2021/2022) 
 Resources Directorate 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Services) 
Directorate 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 
 
 
8th February 2022 (including budgetary proposals for 2022/2023) 
 
 

 
22nd March 2021 
 
Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 

Programme 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals    
Directorate Plan Updates (3rd Quarter 
2021/2022) 
 Resources Directorate 
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Corporate Complaints (6 monthly Performance monitoring and 

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    
Local Government Act Report on the 
Robustness of the Budget 

Budget development and scrutiny 

The Revenue Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 

Budget development and scrutiny 

Reserves Policy Budget development and scrutiny 
Savings programme – Post Consultation 
Update 

Budget development and scrutiny 

Capital Investment and Disposals 
Strategy 

Budget development and scrutiny 

Treasury Management Strategy Budget development and scrutiny 
Corporate Debt Strategy Budget development and scrutiny 
GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

Page 12



update – 1st and 2nd quarters 2021/22) management 
Financial Update Financial scrutiny 
Property Investments - Performance 
and Risk - 2021/22 

Financial scrutiny of the activities 
of the Property Growth Fund Sub-
Committee 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 
 
To be arranged:  
A report regarding the Strategic Plan relating to recovery from Covid-19.

Page 13



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Notes of an Informal meeting of Committee Members 
Monday, 12th July 2021 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Holly (in the Chair); Councillors Ali Ahmed, Anstee, 
Brett, Joinson, Nolan, O’Neill, Rana and Donna Williams.   
 
OFFICERS: N. Thornton (Director of Resources), J. Searle (Director of 
Economy), J. Murphy (Chief Finance Officer), S. Smith (Deputy Chief Finance 
Officer), M. Ashworth (Head of Commercial, Economy and Resources 
Finance) and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate) 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Wardle (Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Corporate) 
 

1 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Robinson and 
Wraighte. 
 

2 PROPERTY INVESTMENT RISK 
Further to minute 75 of the meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, held 25th March 2021, the Committee received a confidential 
report which detailed the risks associated with property investments made and 
proposed to be made by and on behalf of the Council. The report was 
subsequently intended to be submitted to the Cabinet for approval. Therefore 
the Committee was asked to comment on both its content and 
recommendations prior to consideration by Cabinet. 
 
The meeting was informed that the Council held a number of property and 
non-treasury investments including those derived from its property investment 
strategy, as set out in the Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy approved 
at the Budget Council meeting in March 2021.  The key areas in terms of 
current investment were:- 
 
 Property Growth Fund 
 Asset Development Fund 
 Historic Commercial & Industrial Estate 
 Manchester Airport Investment 
 Rochdale Riverside Retail and Leisure scheme 
 
The Council also has a number of schemes under development. The Council 
needs to establish its risk appetite for debt exposure; this can be established 
by using the value of debt charges in ratio to the available resources for 
Council Services and/or establishing an upper limit on its underlying borrowing 
requirement. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer reported that since March 2017 the Council has 
been implementing a property investment strategy, primarily designed to 
contribute to the Council’s overall regeneration aims for the borough whilst 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



achieving rental income to cover the costs associated with holding a property 
portfolio.  The funds established to implement this strategy were the Property 
Growth Fund and the Asset Development Fund.  The investment activity was 
governed by the Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy, and budgeted for 
within the Capital Programme, both of which were approved at the Budget 
Council meeting in March 2021. 
 
In considering the report Members were advised that decisions concerning 
investment in property undertaken by the Council should be made with full 
knowledge of the potential risks and rewards inherent in the activity. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be commended by Members of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and the Cabinet be requested to approve the 
recommendations contained therein. 

Page 15



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 14th September 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Peter Thompson 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Call in: Pennines Township Funds 2021/2022 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. This report presents details of a decision that has been made by Pennines 

Township Committee at its meeting on 20th July 2021 (minute 7: Pennines 
Township Find 2021/2002), which has been called-in by Councillors Emsley 
and Paolucci. The Call-in relates specifically to two funding decisions at 
resolution 4 to Minute 7; these are… ‘(c) That the application from Milnrow 
Brass Band, for Restoration/replacement of instruments be approved for a 
total of £5k’ and… ‘(g) That the application from Wardle Anderson Brass Band 
be approved for a maximum of £5k.’   

 
Recommendation 

 
2. The Committee give consideration to this matter and; 

a. Confirm the two decisions of the Pennines Township Committee, in 
which case the decision takes immediate effect; 

b. Recommend to Pennines Township Committee that they reconsider 
the decision on ground to be specified by this meeting of the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, in which case the 
matter will be considered at the next available meeting of the 
Township Committee; 

Or. Should the decision be considered to fall outside of the Council’s 
Budgetary and Policy Framework, the item be referred to Full Council to 
determine if the decision should be reviewed 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. The recommendations are presented so that Members of the Corporate 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee can make an informed decision with regard 
to the decision that Pennines Township Committee has made in respect of 
this matter. 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



Key Points for Consideration 
 
4.  
 
4.1 

The decision made by Pennines Township Committee, has been called-in by 
Councillors Emsley and Paolucci (the Township Committee’s decision 
(minute 7), the report which the Committee considered and the protocol for 
dealing with Called-in items of business are attached). 
 
Councillors Emsley and Paolucci have called-in this item for the following 
reasons:  

I. There is not enough information on which to make a decision;  
II. An alternative policy option or options has/have been insufficiently 

explored;  
III. The reason(s) for rejection of alternative policy options has/have been 

insufficiently explained;  
“The bands had requested £5,000 (PTC/02/21 Milnrow) and £11,650 
(PTC/06/21 Wardle Anderson) respectively. They were awarded a flat rate 
£5,000 which was 100% of Milnrow’s request and less than 50% of Wardle 
Anderson’s request. These were the only award made that evening that was 
less than requested. Both bands make considerable contribution to the 
community and I do not feel that this was fair and equitable, I feel they could 
have both been awarded a percentage of what they were asking for, not a 
‘flat’ rate. 
Wardle Anderson Brass Band draws many of its players from local schools, 
there is a tradition of tuition from Wardle Academy being offered in the 
feeder Primary Schools: Kentmere, St Andrew’s, St James’s, Smithy Bridge, 
Holy Trinity and Littleborough. This means that the membership of this band 
is truly based in our Pennines Township, specifically in the wards of 
Smallbridge, Wardle, Smithy Bridge and Littleborough. They should be given 
a fair decision by the Committee.” 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
No alternatives have been considered, as the Council’s Constitution requires 
that this Committee deals with this particular item of called-in business. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. Not applicable 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. Not applicable 

 
  

Consultation 
 
7. Not applicable 

 

Page 17



Background Papers Place of Inspection 
 
None    

 

For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson, Tel: 01706 924715, 
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 18



Minute 7 – Pennines Township Committee – 20th July 2021 
 

Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Communities and Co-
operation / Director of Neighbourhoods updating on revenue and capital expenditure, 
commitments and balances of Pennines Township Funds 2021/22 and enable the 
allocation of funds to proposed projects. 
 
Alternatives considered 
Members were able to approve or not the allocation of funds to projects as appropriate. 
 
RESOLVED 
1. That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines Township revenue 

and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2, be noted.  
2. That the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3.  
3. That the Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 

Vice Chair of the committee, to be given delegated authority to make decisions on 
any deferred projects. 

4. That the applications from Township Revenue Funds 2020/21 be dealt with as 
outlined in the below 

a. That an application Ramsden Road, Wardle - Speed survey be deferred 
pending further information on traffic calming options. 

b. That the Ferrand Road, Littleborough – Introduction of No Waiting At Any 
Time Restrictions be approved 

c. That the application from Milnrow Brass Band, for Restoration / replacement 
of instruments be approved for a total of £5k 

d. That the Wardle Memorial and Tennis Courts Disabled Access application 
be approved 

e. That the application for the Beechfield Road, Milnrow - No Waiting at Any 
Time Restrictions be declined. 

f. That the application from Milnrow Cricket Club for the Going Green project 
for £10k be approved, pending confirmation of the total amount of fund 
raising achieved by the Club.  

g. That the application from Wardle Anderson Brass Band be approved for a 
maximum of £5k. 

h. That the applications for improvements to Clough Street play area be 
approved 

i. That the Traffic Regulation Order for No/Limited Waiting on Ogden Lane be 
approved 

j. That the fencing for Hare Hill Crown Green Bowling Club be approved 
5. That the Chief Finance Officer be requested to review Township Funding.   
6. That costs projects submitted by the Council be provided with a summary of the 

charges. 
 
Reason for resolution 
Pennines Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the Township’s 
community and environment, and realise the Township priorities. 

Page 19



APPENDIX 4 

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2021/22 

Projects Fund 2021/22 available for allocation = £63,738 

Pennines Township Projects Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision 

Ref No Name of Project Ward Fund Criteria & 
Priorities Met 

Request 
Originator Cost 

PF/01/21 Ramsden Road Speed Survey Wardle & West 
Littleborough 

Yes 
Place 

Ward Councillors £1,500 

Project 
Description 

Speed survey on Ramsden Road, Wardle between Birch Road roundabout and Watergrove Reservoir involving the placement of tubes over a week long period to 
determine average vehicle speeds after concerns raised in the area.  The survey will help identify if there is a speeding problem and a report will be prepared outlining the 
results with options to address any issues.  (Project brief at Appendix 4A) 

Risk implication Equipment is vandalised requiring additional visits. 

Capital Fund 2021/22 available for allocation = £69,244 

Pennines Township Capital Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision 

Ref No Name of Project Ward Fund Criteria & 
Priorities Met 

Request 
Originator Cost 

PTC/01/21 Ferrand Road Waiting Restrictions Littleborough 
Lakeside 

Yes 
Place 

Councillors Besford 
& Hartley 
Residents 

£4,000 

Project 
Description 

Introduction of No Waiting At Any Time restrictions along both sides of Ferrand Road from the junction of Todmorden Road for a distance of approximately 33 metres to 
protect driveways and accesses.  Restrictions along Todmorden Road either side of the junction for a distance of 15 metres to protect the whole junction effectively.  
Residents have reported vehicles parking along Ferrand Road close to the junction with Todmorden Road (A6033) are causing both an obstruction to vehicular movement 
and restricting sight lines immediately off and onto the classified road network.  (Project brief with plan at Appendix 4B) 

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in 
additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further 
information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process. 
To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the 
scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising. 

Page 1 of 3 

P
age 20



Pennines Township Capital Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision 

Ref No Name of Project Ward Fund Criteria & 
Priorities Met 

Request 
Originator Cost 

PTC/02/21 Milnrow Brass Band Euphonium Milnrow & 
Newhey 

Yes 
People 

Milnrow Brass Band £5,000 

Project 
Description 

Milnrow Brass Band propose to replace an Euphonium that has developed red rot and is now beyond repair to enable the players to continue to perform in the band to a 
high standard at both contests and concerts.  Unused instruments will be traded in as part payment towards the overall cost of the Euphonium as part of their project to 
replace/restore brass and percussion instruments that are no longer useable.  Milnrow Brass Band participate in local community events and National competitions against 
the best brass bands in the country.  (Application form at Appendix 4C) 

Risk implication None 
PTC/03/21 Wardle Memorial and Tennis Courts Disabled Access Wardle & West 

Littleborough 
Yes 
Place 
People 

Councillor Dearnley £4,070 

Project 
Description 

Provision of disabled access to the Wardle Cenotaph and improved access needed to the tennis courts on Wardle Road involving the construction of a wooden edged 
crush and run pathway approximately 60m from Wardle Memorial Garden to the Wardle Cenotaph and creating a new entrance for the tennis courts.  (Project brief at 
Appendix 4D) 

Risk implication None 
PTC/04/21 Beechfield Road Waiting Restrictions Milnrow & 

Newhey 
Yes 
Place 

Councillor 
Davidson & 
Resident 

£4,000 

Project 
Description 

Introduction of No Waiting At Any Time restrictions along Beechfield Road, Milnrow including 10 metres either side of the junction of Beechfield Road to improve forward 
visibility for motorists and safe passage for pedestrians through the cul-de-sac where there is no designated footpath.  (Project brief with plan at Appendix 4E) 

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in 
additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further 
information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process. 
To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the 
scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising. 

PTC/05/21 Milnrow Cricket Club Going Green Milnrow & 
Newhey 

Yes 
Place 

Milnrow Cricket 
Club 

£10,000 

Project 
Description 

Milnrow Cricket Club have been advised that the roof of the clubhouse has been built incorrect (the pitch is too flat resulting in rain under the tiles via capillary action) and it 
is now beyond repair.  The removal of the roof tiles and installation of solar panels will resolve the issues with the existing roof and provide energy savings for the club over 
the next 25 years.  England Cricket Board loan scheme will finance half the cost (repayable at 0% interest over 5 years) with the monthly repayments offset against the 
energy savings.  Finance for the remaining 50% to be met from fundraising, third party grants and savings/reserves.  (Application form at Appendix 4F) 

Risk implication None 

Page 2 of 3 

P
age 21



Pennines Township Capital Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision 
PTC/06/21 Wardle Anderson Brass Band Percussion Wardle & West 

Littleborough 
Yes 
People 

Wardle Anderson 
Brass Band 

£11,650 

Project 
Description 

Wardle Anderson Brass Band propose to upgrade their percussion section involving the replacement/addition of instruments for their regular rehearsals, concerts and 
contests.  The instruments selected will improve safety for band members as they will be designed for easy loading in and out of vehicles on a regular basis when the band 
travels around the community to perform at concerts as the percussion instruments will have foldable legs, smaller/lighter profile and protective cases.  Wardle Anderson 
Band have members who also play in the Wardle Academy Youth Band and the new percussion instruments would be made available to the Wardle Academy Youth Band 
as well as the school music groups (brass bands, wind bands, jazz band, folk group and percussion ensemble).  Wardle Academy Youth Band participate in high profile 
contests throughout the year and achieved first place at both the National and European Youth Brass Band Championships.  Quality percussion instruments will enable 
local players to continue performing at a high standard at contests and concerts.  (Application form at Appendix 4G) 

Risk implication None 
PTC/07/21 Clough Street Play Area improvements Wardle & West 

Littleborough 
Yes 
Place 

Councillor Paolucci £1,760 

Project 
Description 

Improvements to Clough Street Play Area, Wardle consisting of the supply and installation of one picnic bench, one closed top litter bin and a sign plus the extension of a 
section of the existing fence line.  (Project brief at Appendix 4H) 

Risk implication None 
PTC/08/21 Ogden Lane Waiting Restrictions Milnrow & 

Newhey 
Yes 
Place 

Councillor Kelly £4,000 

Project 
Description 

Introduction of No/Limited Waiting Restrictions on Ogden Lane, Newhey to limit the time and availability of on-street parking to resolve the issues of parking and access in 
the area.  (Project brief at Appendix 4I) 

Risk implication Large numbers of objections during the public consultation process and changes to the proposals as advertised. 
PTC/09/21 Hare Hill Bowling Club Fence Littleborough 

Lakeside 
Yes 
Place 

Hare Hill Bowling 
Club & Ward 
Councillors 

£1,958 

Project 
Description 

Supply and installation of three sections of 2m high mesh style fencing to prevent/deter people from accessing the Hare Hill Bowling Club grounds via the hedge and over 
the stream.  (Project brief at Appendix 4J) 

Risk implication None 

Page 3 of 3 

P
age 22



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 20 July 2021 
Portfolio Communities & Co-operation 
Report Author Peter Thompson 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Call in: Pennines Township Funds 2021/2022 
 

 
1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments 

and balances of Pennines Township Funds 2021/22 and enable the allocation 
of funds to proposed projects. 

 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines 

Township revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2. 
 
2.2 Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in 

Appendix 3. 
 
2.3 Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to 

proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4. 
 
2.4 Members note the Townships & Communities Manager has assessed 

proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility 
for the Pennines Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and any 
specific risks have been identified (information detailed in Appendix 4). 

 
2.5 The Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 

Vice Chair of the committee, to be given delegated authority to make 
decisions on any deferred projects. 

 
3. Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 Management of the Pennines Township Fund is delegated to the Pennines 

Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee. 
 
3.2 Pennines Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 

Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities. 
 

Page 23



3.3 To enable the committee to monitor and review the use of the Pennines 
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds. 

 
4. Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of 

Pennines Township Funds 2021/22 in Appendix 1 and 2.  Actual/committed 
spend for revenue funds is 46.33% and capital funds is 7.33%. 

 
4.2 Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Pennines 

Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee to ensure that Members are 
aware of the projects that have been agreed within their Ward.  Members are 
asked to note the decisions made under the delegated arrangements since 
the last committee meeting in Appendix 3. 

 
4.3 Projects have been identified for funding from Pennines Township Funds 

2021/22.  Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or defer 
the allocation of revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects listed in 
Appendix 4. 

 
4.4 To reduce the potential for carry forward of funds during 2021/22, Members 

are asked to agree to give delegated authority to make decisions on any 
deferred projects to the Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation 
with the Chair and Vice Chair of the committee. 

 
4.5 Alternatives Considered 
 

In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to projects as appropriate. 

 
5. Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 Pennines Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 

expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2021/22 in 
Appendix 1 and 2. 

 
5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 

of the Pennines Township Fund to ensure best use of available resources. 
 
5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 

reports will be presented to future committees. 
 
6. Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be 

identified for the proposed projects in Appendix 4. 
 
6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 

will be updated to reflect how funds are allocated across the Townships in line 
with the identified priorities. 

 

Page 24



6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities. 

 
6.4 Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the 

Council has made a commitment to consider the impact on service users of 
any changes to the funding arrangements for the voluntary sector and to 
provide them with at least three months’ notice of any changes and liaise with 
them and any relevant stakeholders to mitigate the impact of reduced funding. 
Therefore, if Members are inclined not to continue funding the provision of a 
service provided by the voluntary sector, Members should be mindful of their 
obligations under the Compact. 

 
7. Consultation 

 
7.1 Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee receives regular 

monitoring reports about the use of the funds.  Any proposal for funding 
requires support from at least one Member.  All proposals will to be consulted 
on as appropriate with Members, residents and other stakeholders. 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
None N/A 

 
 
For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson Tel: 01706 924715 

peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 25



 

Form PT03 

PPEENNNNIINNEESS  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  22002200//2211  

AAPPPPLLIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM  

 

REF 
 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.  

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project Restoration / replacement of instruments 

 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation Milnrow Brass Band 

b) Type of organisation 

 
Voluntary/ 
community 

 
Registered 

charity 

 
Sports/ 

leisure club 

 
Limited 

company 

 
Private 

company 

 
Social 

enterprise 

  
Other  
type 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides 

The bands objectives as per the constitution are: 

i. To provide musical, cultural and educational interests and entertainment for the members and the 

general public 

ii. To encourage the appreciation of music and participation of the performance of music 

iii. To foster a spirit of good fellowship amongst members and to maintain links with the community of 

Rochdale and surrounding areas 

iv. To maintain and develop the musical performance standards of the band and its playing members 

individually 

v. To do such other things as are incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above 

Milnrow Band has been established for over 150 years and remains in the heart of the village with around 40 

volunteers associated with the band; 30 playing members and the rest loyal administration volunteers 

helping to ensure the successful running of the band, from personnel issues to its financial stability.  

Milnrow Band is highly visible in the village and the wider borough of Rochdale from both a performance 

perspective and charity & community work. 

The Band attracts members from the local community and other areas, therefore bringing people into 

Rochdale. Approximately 25 of the volunteers associated with the Band live in the Rochdale area.  

We participate in an average of 2 events per month ranging from local community events to National 

competitions against the best Brass Bands in the country.  

d) Contact name Natalie Beer 

e) Contact telephone   

PTC/02/21

APPENDIX 4C

Page 26



 

Form PT03 

f) Contact address and 
postcode 

 
 

 
 

g) Email address  

h) Web address http://milnrowband.co.uk/ 

 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?  Yes  No 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below 

 
Funding previously secured from Pennine Township to finance the band’s trip to London to compete at the 
National Finals at the Royal Albert Hall in October 2013 and then again in October 2017. 
 
We also obtained funding in 2019 as part of this project to restore a BBb Bass and replace some percussion 
instruments. 
 

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come 
from Rochdale Council? 

 
 Yes  No 

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 

 

 

Page 27

http://milnrowband.co.uk/


 

Form PT03 

 

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 

 
The Band currently own a full set of brass and percussion instruments. However, due to old age and general 

wear and tear, we are looking to undertake a project to replace / restore instruments that are no longer 

useable. 

The project will combine purchase of new instruments where repair is not possible, and restoration where 

this is more cost effective. 

Euphonium 

Whilst the band currently own a Euphonium, and whilst this was a top of the range instrument when initially 

purchased, this is many years old, has developed red rot and is now beyond repair. The cost of a suitable 

replacement is £6,500, however, we do have other unused instruments that we will trade in and use as part 

payment so we are requesting £5,000 towards the overall cost.  

Personal purchase of the above instruments is not possible so this project will mean that the players are 

able to continue playing in the band to a high standard. This will also benefit future performances as fully 

working instruments will be available. This in turn will improve the standard of the band as both contest and 

concert performances will be more prepared.  

Whilst the band does currently have a healthy cash balance, this is due grants obtained during the Covid 

lockdowns which are being spent on bandroom repairs to ensure rehearsal facilities are safe. 

In addition, in a normal year (i.e. when the band are fully functioning again) we suffer c.£3k loss per annum 

so using existing funds to finance the purchase of instruments is not feasible.  

Project start date 
1.7.21 
 

Project completion 
date 

Ongoing (as instruments 
continually need replacing) 
but this element will be 
completed by 1.9.21 

Page 28



 

Form PT03 

 

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £6,500.00 

b) Amount of grant required £5,000.00 

c) Amount from other sources £1,500.00 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

None – the other source relates to 
traded in instruments  

  

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose 
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues.  At least two quotations will be 
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.  
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue 
and Customs). 

Expenditure item Cost 

 
Besson prestige Euphonium: 
 
https://www.bandsupplies.co.uk/products/besson-prestige-euphonium-
lacquer-2347 
 

 
£6,500.00 

TOTAL £6,500.00 
Page 29

https://www.bandsupplies.co.uk/products/besson-prestige-euphonium-lacquer-2347
https://www.bandsupplies.co.uk/products/besson-prestige-euphonium-lacquer-2347


Page 30



 

 

Page 31



 

   

Page 32



 

 

Page 33



 

Form PT03 

 

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUND 2021/22 
APPLICATION FORM 

 

REF 
PTC/06/21 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office. 

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project Purchasing new percussion for Wardle Anderson Brass Band 

 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation Wardle Anderson Brass Band 

b) Type of organisation 

 
☒ 

Voluntary/ 
community 

☐ Registered 
charity 

☐ 
Sports/ 

leisure club 

☐ 
Limited 

company 

☐ 
Private 

company 

☐ 
Social 

enterprise 

☐  
Other  
type 

 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides 

 
The main aims and objectives of Wardle Anderson Brass Band are: 
 
To provide the support, facilities and players to maintain a highly professional community based brass band.  
 
To ensure the band maintains provision for young people to progress to when they over 18 and therefore too 
old to compete in Youth Band competitions. 
 
To provide professional guidance and direction to ensure the band continually improves and enables 
continual improvement for all the band members. 
 
To continue to provide regular subsidised entertainment, marches and concerts at local churches and within 
the local community. 
 
To compete in competitions, encouraging improvement and positively promoting our local area. 
 
To provide support to Wardle Community Band – a band created for absolute beginners to learn a brass 
instrument which has been a great success and many people have taken advantage of. Some players have 
stayed with the band and some have moved on to other bands in the area. 

 

d) Contact name Becky Whitehead 

e) Contact telephone   

APPENDIX 4G

Page 34



 

Form PT03 

f) Contact address and 
postcode 

 
 

g) Email address  

h) Web address www.andersonbrass.co.uk 

 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before? ☒ Yes ☐ No 

 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below 

 
2019 - £7,335 – Refurbishments of brass instruments 
2017-  £5,205 – Replacement of brass instruments 
2015 - £3,000 -  Provision of storage container based at Wardle Academy 
2013 - £3,751  - Purchase of new uniforms (ties, jackets and shirts) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come 

from Rochdale Council? 
 

☐ Yes ☒ No 

 
If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 

 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 35



 

Form PT03 

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 
 
The Wardle Anderson brass band was formed in the 1990s, consisting of players from the Wardle Academy 
Youth Band who, at 19, became too old to play in youth band competitions.  In 1997 the band received a 
lottery grant to buy new instruments and uniforms. The old instruments were used to create Wardle 
Community Band which gave anyone who had never played an instrument the chance to learn and join a 
band. All of the brass instruments have now been professionally refurbished to a very high standard which 
ensures that every player is playing on a top quality instrument, rightly so for a championship section band.  

The band now has one section of instruments left to upgrade which is the percussion section. This grant 
would be used to fund the replacement/addition of instruments to the section so that they can be used for 
regular rehearsals, concerts and contests. The instruments we hope to purchase have been thought about 
with logistics in mind to make it more possible and safer for the players to move to various venues. The 
timpani drums are designed with foldable legs, have a smaller/lighter profile and protective casing so that 
they can be loaded on and off the van easily on a regular basis when traveling around the community 
delivering concerts.  

The band have always been highly professional and successful, have always had a strong presence within 
the local community, and always provided facilities for young people to be able to join a brass band and 
continually contribute and develop their skills. The majority of the members of Wardle Anderson Brass Band 
are also members of the Wardle Academy Youth Band. With Wardle Anderson having such a strong link 
with the Youth Band, the new percussion would also be available for the Youth Band to use as well as the 
school music groups (brass bands, windbands, jazz band, folk group and percussion ensemble). This will 
mean the impact on the community will be even larger. The Youth Band take part in many very high profile 
contests throughout the year and have been placed first on many occasions in both the National and 
European Youth Brass Band Championships and will regularly have use of some of these instruments to 
prepare and perform at these events.  

 

Project start date July 2021 
Project completion 
date 

December 2021 

   

Page 36



 

Form PT03 

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £12650 

b) Amount of grant required £11650 

c) Amount from other sources £1000 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

Wardle Anderson brass band £1000 July 2021 

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose quotations, 
cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues.  At least two quotations will be required for 
any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.  Costs for 
items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue and 
Customs). 

Expenditure item Cost 

Quote number 1 
LP Aspire Wood Bongos  
Bongo Stand  
Bongo Bag  
Dream Energy 19" Clash Cymbals   
Sabian XSR 17" Cymbal  
Sabian XSR 19" Cymbal  
Sabian XSR Cymbal Pack  
Protection Racket Deluxe Cymbal Bag  
Hercules Trap Tray x 3 £187.38 
Adams Standard Tubular bells 1 £3,749.17  
Adams Soloist Vibraphone - Voyager Frame - Silver Bars 1  
Adams Universal 26" Fibreglass Timpani 1  
Adams Universal 29" Fibreglass Timpani 1  
Adams Universal 32" Fibreglass Timpani 1  
THP Mushroom Covers Head Protector 3  
TPU Mushroom Covers Universal Cover 3  
 
Quote number 2 
Aspire Wood Bongos  
Bongo Stand  
Bongo Bag  
19” Dream Energy Clash Cymbals  
Clash Cymbal Stand  
1 x Sabian XSR1707B 17” Suspended Cymbal  
1 x Sabian XSR1907B 19” Suspended Cymbal  
1 x Sabian XSR 25005XCP Cymbal Pack  
2 x 6022-00 Protection Racket Deluxe Cymbal Bag  
3 x DS800B Hercules Trap Trays  
1 x Majestic Tubular Bells  
1 x Majestic Vibraphone  
1 x Majestic  26” Deep Cambered Fibreglass Timpani  
1 x Majestic 29” Deep Cambered Fibreglass Timpani  
1 x Majestic 32” Deep Cambered Fibreglass Timpani  
3 x Majestic MPD Timpani Protection Discs  
3 x Majestic MTH Timpani Covers 

 
£70.83 
£37.46 
£19.17 £19.17 
£266.67  
£144.17 
£164.17 
£374.17 
£35.42 
£62.46 x 3 = £187.38 
£3,749.17  
£3,020.83  
£1,249.17  
£1,328.33  
£1,501.67  
3 x £83.33= £250.00 
3 x £100.00 £300.00 
 
 
 
£ 85.00 
£ 45.00 
£ 23.00 
£ 320.00 
£71.00 
£ 163.00 
£ 188.00 
£ 459.00 
£ 44.00 
£ 225.00 
£ 3,493.00 
£ 2,710.00 
£ 1,430.00 
£ 1,435.00 
£ 1,536.00 
£ 276.00 
£147.00 

TOTAL Quote 1:£12698 Quote 2: £12650 Page 37



 

Form PT03 

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application.  IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY 
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION.  Please tick the 
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application. 

 

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s) ☒ 
b) Constitution/governing document ☒ 
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please 

confirm your organisation has the following: 
 Child protection policies and procedures ☒ Yes ☐ N/A  
 Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and  
.volunteers 

☒ Yes ☐ N/A  

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for 
proposed expenditure 

☒ 

 

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION 

We, the undersigned agree to: 

● Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions. 
● No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given. 
● Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised 

by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf. 
● Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from 

Pennines Township Office to make changes. 
● Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed 

Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office. 
● Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund. 
● Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale 

Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes. 
● Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or 

can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the 
grant on behalf of the organisation. 

Contact Person 
Organisation Chair or Treasurer 
(Different from Contact Person) 

Signature  Signature 

Full name Becky Whitehead Full name Joanne Coffey 

Position General Secretary (Anderson Band) Position Treasurer (Anderson Band) 

Date 14/06/2021 Date 14/06/2021 

 

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have: 
● answered all the relevant questions and 
● enclosed all the information requested: 

- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document 
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues 
- BACS form 

 

We will return incomplete application forms. 
 

Please send your completed application form and supporting documentation to the Pennines  
Township Office  Email: pennines.township@rochdale.gov.uk and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 38



Quote Number : DATE

 

Quote Delivered Via : Email - PDF Quote Valid Until : 

ITEM NO DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

0 0 0
LP Aspire Wood Bongos 1 £70.83 £70.83
Bongo Stand 1 £37.46 £37.46

 Bongo Bag 1 £19.17 £19.17
0 0 0

Dream Energy 19" Clash Cymbals 1 £266.67 £266.67
 Sabian XSR 17" Cymbal 1 £144.17 £144.17
 Sabian XSR 19" Cymbal 1 £164.17 £164.17

Sabian XSR Cymbal Pack 1 £374.17 £374.17
 Protection Racket Deluxe Cymbal Bag 1 £35.42 £35.42

Hercules Trap Tray 3 £62.46 £187.38
0 0 0

Adams Standard Tubular bells 1 £3,749.17 £3,749.17
Adams Soloist Vibraphone - Voyager Frame - Silver Bars 1 £3,020.83 £3,020.83

0 0 0
Adams Universal 26" Fibreglass Timpani 1 £1,249.17 £1,249.17
Adams Universal 29" Fibreglass Timpani 1 £1,328.33 £1,328.33
Adams Universal 32" Fibreglass Timpani 1 £1,501.67 £1,501.67

0 0 0
Mushroom Covers Head Protector 3 £83.33 £250.00
Mushroom Covers Universal Cover 3 £100.00 £300.00

0 0 0
0 0 0

 

 

£12,698.58

 

QUOTE TOTAL

 

 reserve the right to change prices & specifications without notification

The prices shown exclude VAT at the current rate of 20%

Prices valid for 14 days.

 

 

Quote
Wardle Academy

Birch Road

Wardle, Rochdale

Greater Manchester

OL12 9RD

18/06/2021

VALID FOR : 14 DAYS

02/07/2021

Purchase of :

QUOTE 1

Page 39



!  
Wardle Anderson Band 
c/o Mr  

17th November 2020 

Dear Mr , 

Please find the below quotation as per your request. 

1 x  Aspire Wood Bongos        £       85.00 
1 x  Bongo Stand        £       45.00 
1 x  Bongo Bag        £       23.00 
1 x Pair of 19” Dream Energy Clash Cymbals      £     320.00 
1 x  Clash Cymbal Stand       £       71.00 
1 x Sabian XSR1707B 17” Suspended Cymbal      £     163.00 
1 x Sabian XSR1907B 19” Suspended Cymbal      £     188.00 
1 x Sabian XSR 25005XCP Cymbal Pack      £     459.00 
2 x  Protection Racket Deluxe Cymbal Bag     £       44.00 
3 x DS800B Hercules Trap Trays       £     225.00 
1 x Majestic BK9350 Tubular Bells       £  3,493.00 
1 x Majestic V6530S Vibraphone       £  2,710.00 
1 x Majestic COF2600 26” Deep Cambered Fibreglass Timpani    £  1,430.00 
1 x Majestic COF2900 29” Deep Cambered Fibreglass Timpani    £  1,435.00 
1 x Majestic COF3200 32” Deep Cambered Fibreglass Timpani    £  1,536.00 
3 x Majestic MPD Timpani Protection Discs      £     276.00 
3 x Majestic MTH Timpani Covers       £     147.00 

        Total Amount  £12,650.00 

All the above prices are inclusive of VAT. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any queries. 

Kind Regards 

!  
 

 

QUOTE 2

Page 40



PROTOCOL FOR DEALING WITH CALLED-IN BUSINESS AT AN 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will briefly outline the 
following procedure to the Committee, the Chair of the Township 
Committee/Cabinet Member, the Calling-in Members and Officers. 
 
1. The Chair of the Cabinet will explain to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee the background to the decision that has been called-in. 
 
2. The report author will explain the reasons for the recommendation in the 

report. 
 
3. The Calling-in Members will explain to the Committee the reasons why 

they have called-in the Sub-Committee’s decision. 
 
4. The Calling-in Members may ask questions of the Chair of the Cabinet. 
 
5. The Calling-in Members may ask questions of the report’s author. 
 
6. Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may ask questions of 

the Chair of the Cabinet and of the report author. 
 
7. Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may ask questions of 

the Calling-in Members. 
 
8. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will debate the issues. 
 
9. The Chair of the Cabinet and the report author will have the opportunity 

to respond to any relevant points raised during the debate. 
 
10. The Calling-in Members will have the opportunity to respond to any 

relevant points raised during the debate. 
 
11.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will make its decision, and there 

are essentially three decisions which the Committee can make: - 
a. To uphold the decision that has been called-in, which means the 

decision will take immediate effect. 
b. To refer the decision back to the decision making body (Cabinet) to 

determine at its next available meeting, if necessary, with any 
recommendations which this (Scrutiny) Committee considers to be 
appropriate. 

c. In exceptional cases to refer the matter to Full Council – only if the 
matter falls outside the remit of the Council’s approved budgetary and 
policy framework (not applicable in this case) 

 
 
 

Page 41



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date of Meeting  
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Communities and Co-
operation, Cabinet 
Member for Climate 
Change and 
Sustainability, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and 
Corporate 

Report Author Ben Jorgensen 

 

Public/Private Document  
 

 

Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2021-22: 
Quarter 1 Performance Update 

 
 

Executive Summary 
 
1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 1 (1st April – 30th June 2021) 

towards achievement of the targets contained in the Resources Directorate 
Plan 2021-22 and Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate Plan 
2021-22. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report 

and the appendices. 
 

Reason for Recommendation 
 
3. 
 
 
 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be 
reported to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each 
quarter.  
 
The Quarter 1 progress reports for the Resources Directorate and 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate are attached at Appendix 1 
and 2 respectively. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria: 
 
Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date 
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control  
Green: Action completed by the target date  

Page 42

Agenda Item 9



 
 
3.3 
 
 
 

Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track 
 
The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple. 
 
 

 
 

Key Points for Consideration 
 
4. 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 Progress 
 
Performance Overview 
 
92% (12) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2021-22 are 
ongoing. One action is not fully complete and the action due date has now 
passed. The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in 
meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The actions that isn’t fully complete and the due dates has passed (Amber) 
relates to: 
 
 Refresh and support the Member Development Programme 

 
 
Quarter 1 Summary 
 
As part of the action to refresh and support the Member Development 
Programme, a benchmarking exercise has been undertaken with other 
Greater Manchester Authorities that has informed by LGA best practices 
and training packages. The Scrutiny Study Group considered practices at 
other non-GM authorities as part of their work. The member led task and 
finish group have produced a report which has been approved by the 
Scrutiny Sub-Group. Delay of completion is due to the report being pulled by 

Page 43



 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet prior to the previous election. Further discussion will be required 
going forward with the Portfolio Holder. 
 
An in year monitoring report for the further development of the Rochdale 
Riverside 1 financial model is underway. In Q1, further development work 
has started on the Property Growth Fund (PGF) dashboard, which is a key 
financial reporting tool for PGF Sub-Committee and senior leaders. The 
updated dashboard aims to focus on the in year performance of savings vs 
target, but also home-in on a rolling 5 year forecast on for other Key 
Performance Indicators (KPI's). Following this, in Q2, a similar dashboard 
with same 'branding' will be produced for Rochdale Riverside Phase 1, with 
its own relevant KPIs to create a consistent reporting style across the 
commercial portfolio. 
 
As part of the action to step up the approach to transformation and align 
transformation to Corporate Plan priorities a Transformation Board has been 
established; meeting 6 weekly since April 2021. The Council are currently 
looking for external consultancy support to work with the Joint Leadership 
Team to help develop a renewed purpose and vision for transformation 
leading to the identification of 5 priority projects. Work is ongoing with STAR 
to market test for this support. 
 
As part of the roll out of intelligent automation technology across the 
organisation it was decided that there would be a review of the automation 
of at least two processes within Revenues and Benefits services. The first 
process (Invoice Processing) is 50% completed and operational. Work is on-
going on the reminder of this process. Once completed work will begin on 
the second process (currently Free School Meals automation), unfortunately 
this is not on track due to circumstances outside of our control (change of 
personnel at CodeBase8). Additionally, to engage with services across the 
Council to develop a pipeline of processes which could be automated, two 
workshops have been held with a 3rd mop up workshop currently scheduled 
for 14th July. Circa 90 opportunities that lend themselves to Intelligent 
Automation (IA) technology have been identified initially and are currently 
being reviewed in relation the ease of fit with IA technology and size of 
savings opportunity there is. This has been developed as a Proof of Concept 
savings proposal with £105k of savings already reflected in the budget 22/23 
and the costs being funded through Transformation Fund. 
 
 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate Plan 2021-22 
Progress 
 
Performance Overview 
 
100% (11) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2021-22 are 
ongoing. The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate 
in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 1. 
 
 
 

Page 44



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
 
 
 
4.11 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarter 1 Summary 
 
The Climate Change Strategy and a comprehensive delivery plan are being 
finalised and will be taken to the Climate Emergency Working Group for 
agreement in July. This will then be taken through the Council's governance 
processes for final sign off with an aim for this to be in September. A bid 
process is now in place for capital funding of climate related projects with 
some of this money allocated for a new asset management system and staff 
resources to drive forward the climate change agenda (Energy Officer, 
Programme Manager and Woodland and Natural Capital Project Officer). 
Projects are currently being scoped around renewable energy, 
decarbonisation of the public estate and natural environment in partnership 
with GMCA. 
 
A draft digital strategy has been shared widely with various stakeholders 
and partners including health, care, ICT, Libraries, etc. The strategy has 
been developed and informed by the feedback and the GM digital blueprint. 
Further engagement is required to finalise the content and to develop the 
accompanying action plan. It will also be necessary to establish a Board that 
will have oversight of implementation. There is a requirement to undertake 
consultation with the public to understand the digital/digital exclusion 
position in the borough. The Council is linked into a Cooperative Council's 
Innovation Network Policy Lab to support us with this work. There are 
currently some resource issues in driving forward the digital agenda. 
 
A draft domestic abuse needs assessment has been completed by Public 
Health and Community Safety which will help inform a new domestic abuse 
strategy. Draft recommendations have been made. The needs assessment 
is to be reviewed and finalised by panel, with consultation with Joint 
Leadership Team, prior to finalising. 
 
There has been good attendance and contribution to monthly “Community & 
Faith Group” meetings to address insight, concerns and future planning for 
integration of faith and non-faith communities across the borough. There has 

Page 45



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.13 
 

been RBC representation since 2020 at fortnightly Grassroots gathering 
meetings with communities developing appropriate partnership actions with 
stakeholders to address any unmet needs and mitigate emerging community 
concerns e.g. ASB, underage sales, speeding, vandalism, criminal 
exploitation etc. Relevant insight from both of these meetings are escalated 
to relevant stakeholders for action with updates provided to the community 
at future meetings allowing increased resident/stakeholder engagement and 
satisfaction.  
 
As part of the action to review the Council’s community response to the 
pandemic; two review sessions have taken place with council colleagues 
around lessons learnt from the pandemic with discussion around best 
practice and issues that will assist long-term community recovery. 
Information from these sessions have been fed back to Joint Senior 
Leadership Team and the portfolio holder. The Council has been shortlisted 
in the MJ Awards under the Community Heroes category for the work of the 
Covid-19 Community Response team. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
Not applicable 

 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 
 
5.   None 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. None 
  

 

Consultation 
 
7. Not required 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. Appendix 1 -  Resources 

Directorate Plan 2021-22 Q1 
 
Appendix 2 – Neighbourhoods 
(Corporate) Directorate Plan 
2021-22 Q1 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU 

 

Page 46



For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 47



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R21001 Contribution to Local Government Boundary Commission for England Electoral Review 30 November 2021 
 
 

 
90% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21001.A Final recommendations from LGBCE on new ward boundaries 11 May 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Final recommendations received from the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) on 11/05/21 

R21001.B 
Implementation of new ward boundaries as recommended by the LGBCE and amendments to the 
electoral registers 

30 November 2021 
 
 

 
80% 

Interim polling district review commences 14/07/21 by Electoral Review Working Group. Revised electoral registers to be published on 1 March 2022 and new ward 
boundaries to take effect following all out elections in May 2022. 

          

R21002 To strengthen Governance arrangements across the organisation at service level 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
41% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21002.A Improvement of senior officers engagement governance activities 30 June 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Leadership Team have approved a project plan for the role out of training and administrative support from Governance to Directorate work planning and decision 
making procedures. 

R21002.B Service based schemes of delegation reviewed with Officer nominations 31 October 2021 
 
 

 
15% 

A continued increase in the number of officer delegated decision being published. 

R21002.C Constitutional scheme of delegation is updated to meet the needs of the organisation 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
10% 

P
age 48



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Meetings of the Democratic Structures and Constitution working party had identified a number of concerns with the existing Constitution by Members. Consideration of 
widening out the review of the document to ensure it is fit for purpose. 

          

R21003 Health and Social Care - Review and evaluation of decision making structure for Joint Health 
Arrangements 

31 October 2021 
 
 

 
66% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21003.A Align comparative decision making timelines with CCG / LCO 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
90% 

Continue to work with Local Care Organisation and Clinical Commissioning Group colleagues to ensure the transformation to revised structure in April 2022. 

R21003.B Provide training on the Council’s decision making process and structures 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Governance Structure included within the Overview & Scrutiny work programme for 2021/22. 

R21003.C Improve effectiveness of ICB agenda planning across organisations. 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
75% 

Development of proposed structure and timeline been agreed via the Integrated Commissioning Board. 

R21003.D 
Review Health and Social Care governance in light of legislative changes to integrated care 
systems 

31 October 2021 
 
 

 
 0% 

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

  

R21004 Refresh and support the Member Development Programme 30 June 2021 
 
 

 
91% 

          

P
age 49



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21004.A Identify best practice 31 May 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Benchmarking was undertaken with other Greater Manchester Authorities and informed by LGA best practices and training packages. The Scrutiny Study Group 
considered practices at other non-GM authorities as part of their work. 

R21004.B Member led task and finish group to report 31 May 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

A report has been produced and approved by the Scrutiny Sub-Group. 

R21004.C Adoption of new member development option 30 June 2021 
 
 

 
75% 

Report was pulled by Cabinet prior to the previous election. Further discussion required with Portfolio Holder. 

  

R21005 To undertake a base-line review of legal services provision provided within current budget 
framework and a full service review of council priorities to ensure that legal services has the capacity 
and skill set to meet the Council’s priorities. 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
16% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21005.A Evaluate the Corporate Plan 31 August 2021 
 
 

 
70% 

Review of the Corporate Plan is almost complete. 

R21005.B Review work undertaken for each directorate and establish directorate priorities 31 August 2021 
  
 

 
30% 

Meeting invitations have been sent to various Heads of Service to take place within the next 2-3 weeks. Provisional work to scope and formulate initial thoughts on 
Service Level Agreements is underway. 

R21005.C Consider skill set of staff currently within legal services 31 December 2021 
  
 

 
0% 

P
age 50



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

R21005.D Understand the impact on corporate demand and legal services staff 31 December 2021 
  
 

 
0% 

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

R21005.E Review current budget provided to undertake this 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
0% 

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

R21005.F Consider the revision and potential implementation of new SLAs 31 March 2022 
  
 

 
0% 

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

  

R21006 Support the development of the ICS and the Locality Construct 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
22% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21006.A 
Finalise arrangements for Workforce Group with updated TOR and Action Plan based on Board 
priorities 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
95% 

The Terms of Reference for the Workforce Subgroup have been approved by the Systems Board whilst terms of reference for the Finance, Performance and Risk Group 
have been drafted and the workforce programme of work is being developed. A workshop has been arranged for the end of July which will help inform the work 
programme. The Group reports into the Systems Board and the Local Care Organisation Board. 

R21006.B Support CCG with transitional arrangements/TUPE for employees in scope 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
10% 

Support is ongoing for Clinical Commissioning Group employees with regard to the planned transition to the Integrated Care System. We are awaiting the national HR 
framework to inform the detail 

P
age 51



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R21006.C Financially support the development of Locality Construct 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
5% 

Work is ongoing to understand the impact on the financial flows and the pooled fund for 2022/23. 

R21006.D Ensure the impact on the pooled fund for 22/23 is understood 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
0% 

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

          

R21007 Supporting the implementation of the READI Equality Objectives 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
54% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21007.A 
Develop / commission / deliver & evaluate a BAME focussed module for the Aspiring Leaders 
programme 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
60% 

Positive Action approach for 2021 Inspiring leaders Programme: 32% of the cohort identify as BAME compared to 15% on the previous cohort; pre engagement sessions; 
access to BAME network; reverse mentoring; ally ship (to build a more inclusive workplace culture). Programme is yet to be fully delivered and evaluated. 

R21007.B Develop a process to Implement the revised EIA process across the organisation 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
60% 

Further engagement with the Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) tool needed with Heads of Service, to ensure infrastructure is in place anticipated launch of reviewed EIA 
process: templates. Training; tracker, governance (due Sept 21). 

R21007.C 
Develop / commission / deliver E&I learning & development interventions for the leadership 
academy and related programmes and across the organisation as necessary 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
60% 

Some EDI related Organisational Development interventions have been delivered, and embedded within the 3 leadership programmes (Inspiring leaders; Academy; New 
Managers), exploring options for a wider reach to all staff. 

R21007.D 
Review current policies and procedures relating to disability in the workplace supported by 
listening events for disabled staff to create a workforce disability plan 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
50% 

P
age 52



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Launch of BAME staff network 26/07/21. Using BAME work as Blueprint to use for disability and LGBT staff (due Sept-Oct 21). These networks are at early development 
will take time to establish and to support organisational policy development etc. 

R21007.E Development of an inclusive recruitment toolkit 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
40% 

Two HR/OD mangers have undertaken the GM Race Equality Change Agent Programme (RECAP) learning is being transferred in top the draft ‘inclusive recruitment tool’. 
This tool will need to be supported with new ways of working for recruiting managers, and development will be needed to ensure the culture of recruitment pathways 
(attraction, shortlisting, interviews processes, feedback loops) are fair and inclusive. 

          

R21008 Supporting recovery from COVID through the OD Plan and financial planning 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
18% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21008.A 
Developing / implementing / evaluating programmes to: Support teams in building back better iii. 
Supporting change management, managing hybrid teams, systems thinking / leadership iv. 
Providing resilience and wellbeing interventions 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
25% 

OD: Provision of programmes on virtual platforms to ensure continuity in development i.e. recruitment to Leadership Academy Cohort 4 (30 delegates), Aspiring Leaders 
Programme Cohort 2 (20 delegates), New Managers Programme. Inclusion of systems thinking and transformation modules in leadership programmes. 

R21008.B 
Developing / implementing / evaluating programmes to: Provision of coaching support for 
managers at all levels as required 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
25% 

Coaching support provided to 6 Senior Managers. Coaching Skills training provided to Children's Services Managers. Delve talent conversation training rolled out across 
Resources, Integrated Commissioning Development Team, Economy and Adult Care. 

R21008.C 
Developing / implementing / evaluating programmes to: Providing OD support to transformation 
projects as required 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
25% 

Team development / change management programmes designed and delivered to Integrated Commissioning Development Management Team, Revs & Bens Service 
Management Team, and Adult Care Service Management Team. 

R21008.D 
Developing / implementing / evaluating programmes to: Assess the impact of recovery on the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
0% 

P
age 53



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  7  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

  

R21009 Development of shared service arrangements for provision of Internal Audit Functions. 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
22% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21009.A Identify Neighbouring LA’s who may be potential partners 30 June 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Two Local Authorities are expressing interest in a shared service arrangement. 

R21009.B Consider delivery models 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
10% 

Regular meetings are being held and external support has been sourced to help ensure that the correct delivery model option is identified. 

R21009.C Costing of options 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
0% 

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

R21009.D Development of succession plan 31 December 2021 
 
 

 
0% 

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

R21009.E Implementation Plan 31 December 2021 
 
 

 
0% 

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

  

P
age 54



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  8  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R21010 Further development of the Rochdale Riverside 1 financial model together with assessing 
models for future regeneration projects 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
35% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21010.A Develop an in year monitoring report 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
25% 

In Q1, further development work has started on the Property Growth Fund (PGF) dashboard, which is a key financial reporting tool for PGF Sub-Committee and senior 
leaders. The updated dashboard aims to focus on the in year performance of savings vs target, but also home-in on a rolling 5 year forecast on for other Key 
Performance Indicators (KPI's). Following this, in Q2, a similar dashboard with same 'branding' will be produced for Rochdale Riverside Phase 1, with its own relevant 
KPIs to create a consistent reporting style across the commercial portfolio 

R21010.B Deliver monitoring information to PGF sub committee 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
50% 

PGF Sub-Committee receives the PGF Monitoring Report, dashboard and risk register. Quarterly meetings will be arranged to deliver the monitoring in line with overall 
corporate financial reporting as soon as appointments have been made to the Committee. This will developed further as required. 

R21010.C Update Cabinet Members on a 6 monthly basis 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
50% 

Rochdale Riverside Phase 1 models have been updated to incorporate year 1 year one actuals and latest operating budgets, thus allowing for as current data as possible 
to presented to members. Presentation and reports have been shared at Cabinet in line with this requirement. 

R21010.D Overall management of key financial risks 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
25% 

The PGF and Rochdale Riverside Risk registers are live documents that are reviewed regularly, and a risk summary is now included in reporting dashboards. The next 
stage is to ensure mitigation of risks are maximised and impacts of residual financial risks are understood as early as possible. 

R21010.E 
Development of financial models and understanding of financial implications and risks with future 
regeneration projects 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
25% 

Development of financial models for future projects is underway and early stage appraisals are being developed for Neighbourhood and Upper Banks. A committee 
report on the risks of current/proposed investments was developed in Q1 and presented to Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee in Aug/Sept. This will be 
presented to Informal Cabinet and Cabinet in due course. External professional advice has been commissioned. 

P
age 55



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  9  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

  

R21011 Automated Salary monitoring and budget to which links between Civica and i-Trent 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
35% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21011.A Data cleansing of Information held in i-Trent 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
50% 

Data cleansing underway with some of the larger structures being completed initially, e.g. Children’s Social Care, Finance. 

R21011.B Automated files to support budget monitoring and budget setting 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
15% 

  
Work is progressing to support the interface with civica. 
 

R21011.C Interface with Civica 31 December 2021 
 
 

 
75% 

  
Final reports for extracting relevant data from iTrent have been written by the supplier (MHR) and are being tested. 
 

R21011.D Overall completion 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
0% 

 Work is yet to commence on this sub-action. 

  

R21012 Step up the approach to transformation and align transformation to both the Corporate Plan 
priorities and delivery of the MTFS. 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
24% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

P
age 56



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  10  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R21012.A Establish a new transformation board. 30 April 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Transformation Board has been established meeting 6 weekly since April 2021 

R21012.B 
Identify cross cutting transformation programmes and agree via the transformation board 
approximately five priority transformation programmes. 

31 May 2021 
  
 

 
20% 

The Council are looking for external consultancy support to work with the Joint Leadership Team to help develop a renewed purpose and vision for transformation 
leading to the identification of 5 priority projects. Work is ongoing with STaR to market test for this support. 
 

R21012.C 
Develop clear business cases and resource plans for each of the priority transformation 
programmes. 

31 August 2021 
  
 

 
0% 

  
This will follow on once the work to identify the 5 priority projects has been undertaken and completed. 
 

R21012.D 
Align key transformation programmes to the councils MTFS, incorporating anticipated benefits as 
budget assumptions 

01 October 2021 
  
 

 
0% 

 Work is yet to commence on this sub-action. 

R21012.E Improve the monitoring, support and challenge to the transformation fund projects 31 March 2022 
  
 

 
0% 

 Work is yet to commence on this sub-action. 

  

R21013 Roll out intelligent automation technology across the organisation 31 March 2022 
  
 

 
37% 

          
Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21013.A 
Complete and review the automation of at least two processes within Revenues and Benefits 
services 

30 April 2021 
  
 

 
75% 

P
age 57



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  11  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

The first process (Invoice Processing) is 50% completed and operational. Work is on-going on the reminder of this process. Once complete we begin work on the second 
process (currently Free School Meals automation) - not on track due to circumstances outside of our control (change of personnel at CodeBase8). 

R21013.B 
Engage with services across the Council to develop a pipeline of processes which could be 
automated. 

30 April 2021 
  
 

 
100% 

Two workshops have already been held with a 3rd mop up workshop currently scheduled for 14th July. Circa 90 opportunities that lend themselves to Intelligent 
Automation (IA) technology have been identified initially and are currently being reviewed in relation the ease of fit with IA technology and size of savings opportunity 
there is. This has been developed as a Proof of Concept savings proposal with £105k of savings already reflected in the budget wef 22/23 and the costs being funded 
through Transformation Fund. 

R21013.C 
Develop a business case to set out the cost and benefits that can be achieved through rolling out 
IA technology across the organisation. 

31 May 2021 
  
 

 
50% 

Once all the opportunities identified at the workshops have been reviewed further business cases might be produced. 

R21013.D 
If approved – Establish a centre of excellence / new IA team to implement automated processes 
across the organisation. 

31 July 2021 
  
 

 
40% 

Two members of staff within the Resources Directorate are currently undertaking an online practitioner certification and training module. There is also the opportunity 
for others to undertake further training free of charge in order to further expand our skill base in this technology. 

R21013.E Develop a prioritised implementation plan. 31 August 2021 
  
 

 
0% 

 Work is yet to commence on this sub-action. 

R21013.F Automate processes as per the implementation plan 31 March 2022 
  
 

 
0% 

 Work is yet to commence on this sub-action. 

R21013.G Carry out an annual review of what has been achieved. 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
0% 

 Work is yet to commence on this sub-action. 

P
age 58



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  12  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 

 

 

 

P
age 59



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 

N2101 Progress the climate change policy agenda by implementing processes and coordinating and 
facilitating projects that support achievement of Rochdale’s Sustainable Development Goals and the 
priorities in the GM 5 Year Environment Plan 

31 March 2022 
  
 

 
16% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2101.A 
Finalise strategic and operational approach for responding to climate emergency including 
development of a partnership strategy and project framework to support allocation of the 
£1million climate change capital funding pot. 

30 June 2021 
  
 

 
30% 

The Climate Change Strategy and a comprehensive delivery plan are being finalised and will be taken to the Climate Emergency Working Group for agreement in July. It 
will then be taken through the Council's governance processes for final sign off - aiming for September. We now have a bid process in place for capital funding of climate 
related projects. We have already allocated some of this money for a new asset management system and staff resources to drive forward the climate change agenda - 
Energy Officer, Programme Manager and Woodland and Natural Capital Project Officer. Projects are currently being scoped around renewable energy, decarbonisation of 
the public estate and natural environment in partnership with GMCA 

N2101.B 
Coordinate and support successful delivery of the £11million public sector decarbonisation 
scheme 

30 September 2021 
  
 

 
25% 

The Council will receive £11million funding for decarbonisation of the public estate - around 20 buildings. The application process is complete, Cabinet agreed the funding 
agreement, the procurement of contractors is complete and a company has been appointed to provide project support. The work is now underway. Unofficially GMCA 
have confirmed an extension of the delivery timescale from Sept 2021 to March 2022. A further round of funding is expected in the autumn which we may consider 
bidding for. We are also part of a community renewal fund bid with Bolton Council and other partners to support decarbonisation of other public sector buildings. 

N2101.C 
Develop a local area energy plan for the borough working with GMCA and Energy Systems 
Catapult 

31 October 2021 
 
  

 
10% 

LAEPs are being developed by the Energy Systems Catapult on behalf of GMCA for each of the 10 GM districts. The LAEP is a data driven, spatial and collaborative planning 
tool to unlock investment and delivery of smart local energy systems. LAEPs have been developed for Bury, Manchester and Salford and Rochdale’s LAEP should be 
completed by October 2021. The LAEP should help us to identify constraints and issues relating to energy demand across the borough and what opportunities exist for 
both renewable energy and heat to meet our long-term planning requirements. 

N2101.D 
Deliver a successful month of climate change action aligned with COP26, Green Summit and Gaia 
Installation 

30 November 2021 
  
 

5% 

P
age 60



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 

Leadership Team has agreed an events budget of around £15k to support activity. The Council will engage Your Trust in the planning and delivery and work with GMCA to 
ensure our activity links with the carbon battle bus visit and GM Strategy priorities. This activity also coincides with the Gaia Earth art Installation that will be displayed in 
N1R during November - December which will help raise awareness of the climate emergency through a programme of art, culture and education. 

N2101.E Develop a carbon literacy programme and roll out across the Council 31 March 2022 
  
 

 
10% 

The Council has obtained carbon literacy toolkits from the Carbon Literacy Projects, which need adapting so that they are relevant to ROCHDALE. Leadership Team has 
agreed to fund a fixed term Training Coordinator role to help to roll out carbon literacy across the council in the first instance. The role now needs to be developed and 
agreed with SCG. Work is also underway with GMCA to develop an eLearning module that can be used as part of corporate induction. 

          

 N2102 Develop New council Communications Strategy 2021-24 30 September 2021 
  
 

 
25% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2102.A Consult with members and leadership to agree objectives and priorities 30 June 2021 
  
 

 
50% 

  
The consultation process for the new strategy has been agreed with the portfolio holder and surveys are now being written. 
 

N2102.B A refresh of the council’s communication strategy completed 30 September 2021 
  
 

 
0% 

 This is ongoing. 

          

P
age 61



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

N2103 Expand super-fast broadband to at least 25% of the borough through Full Fibre to premises 
project 

31 January 2021 
  
 

 
53% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2103.A 
Agree with Greater Manchester partners how benefits of super-fast broadband will be maximised 
across the borough 

31 January 2022 
  
 

 
65% 

 Rochdale have joined with Oldham, Stockport, Bury, GMCA, TfGM and GM Fire and Rescue Service to explore the option of a GM ONE network, soft market testing has 
been undertaken and a procurement exercise is being currently underway  to look at procuring overlay services collaboratively. The contract is due to be awarded to the 
successful bidder in January 2022. 
 

N2103.B 
67 premises (of 99) with a public sector presence across the borough connected with full fibre to 
increase connectivity 

31 December 2021 
  
 

 
75% 

 Installation of infrastructure at the identified buildings has been underway, however there have been some delays due to some access being restricted due to COVID. 
DCMS funding has now been extended until December 2021 
 

N2103.C 
Enable the use of the full fibre for residents and businesses through engagement and 
appointment of a market supplier 

31 December 2021 
 
  

 
20% 

 Once the market supplier is approved following the tender process an implementation plan will be available showing key dates when overlay services will be installed 
throughout the borough. 
 
 

N2104 Complete consultation and commence delivery of Rochdale Borough Digital Experience Strategy 
2021-24 

31 August 2021 
  
 

 
20% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2104.A Consult with partners and public on draft digital strategy including issues around digital inclusion 31 July 2021 
  
 

 
35% 

P
age 62



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

The draft strategy has been shared widely with various stakeholders and partners including health, care, ICT, Libraries, etc. It has been informed by the feedback and the 
GM digital blueprint. Further engagement is required to finalise the content and to develop the accompanying action plan. It will also be necessary to establish a Board 
that will have oversight of implementation. There is a requirement to undertake consultation with the public to understand the digital / digital exclusion position in the 
borough. The Council is linked into a Cooperative Council's Innovation Network Policy Lab to support us with this work. There are currently some resource issues in driving 
forward the digital agenda. 

N2104.B Complete sign off of Strategy and delivery plan 31 August 2021 
  
 

 
5% 

This work was previously being led by the AD of Transformation who has now left the authority. It has been passed to Corporate Policy. It is likely the strategy will not be 
signed off until September time. The delay is attributed to the handover of the work. There isn't that much more work to do on the strategy but the delivery plan still 
requires development. 

  

N2105 Deliver improved and innovative service delivery across Council through roll out of Office 365 
and conferencing tools 

31 March 2022 
  
 

 
22% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2105.A 
Put in place a project plan for roll out of Microsoft Office 365, including addressing ICT security 
and Information Governance issues 

31 May 2021 
  
 

 
20% 

  
Options Paper to be formulated to present to Council Leadership to agree order and priority of enablement’s across the Authority which will feed into subsequent 
discussions with partners to assist in the design and configuration of services available with the M365 licensing. 
 

N2105.B Review of conferencing tools to ensure best use of future technology 31 August 2021 
  
 

 
60% 

  
Draft strategy document written. Internal review ongoing within ICT. 
 

N2105.C Agree approach to future conferencing tools 31 December 2021 
 
  

 
5% 

  
Awaiting final review as per N2105.B before approach can be agreed. 

P
age 63



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 

N2105.D Roll out of Microsoft Teams and associated functionality completed across Council 31 March 2022 
 
  

 
5%  

  
Dependent on N2015.A. Teams likely to be a higher priority than other M365 deployments and subject to N2105.A, B and C. 
 

  

N2106 Work in partnership to develop and implement new partnership Domestic Abuse Strategy 31 January 2022 
 
  

 
58% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2106.A Undertake domestic abuse needs assessment to help inform new strategy 30 September 2021 
 
  

 
75% 

  
Draft needs assessment complete by Public Health and Community Safety. Draft recommendations made. Needs Assessment to be reviewed and finalised by panel, with 
consultation with Joint Leadership Team, prior to finalising. 
 

N2106.B Implement funding to address domestic abuse accommodation 31 January 2022 
 
  

 
25% 

  
Spend plan developed and agreed by Joint Leadership Team and urgent key decision. Delivery of plan now underway. 
 

N2106.C Implement new partnership domestic abuse strategy 31 January 2022 
 
  

 
75% 

  
Draft strategy produced by Community Safety. Awaiting recommendations from Domestic Abuse Needs Assessment prior to finalising the strategy and implementing. 
 

          

P
age 64



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

N2107 Develop and implement the Council’s own CCTV monitoring suite and the provision of an in-
house CCTV monitoring 

31 December 2021 
 
  

 
0% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2107.A 
Complete tendering exercise for a new video surveillance system (VSS) for the new in-house CCTV 
monitoring service 

31 August 2021 
 
  

 
100% 

  
Following advice from STAR Procurement, a procurement framework was used to appoint a contractor. Action now complete. 
 

N2107.B Complete the build of the new CCTV monitoring suite within Rochdale Police station 31 October 2021 
 
  

 
50% 

  
Council wide review of public space monitored cameras complete. Review of additional cameras are underway. 
 
 

N2107.C 
3)Undertake council-wide review of CCTV provision and develop a self-assessment process which 
assesses compliance with the CCTV Code of Practice 

31 December 2021 
 
  

 
50% 

  
Draft self-assessment tool developed by Information Governance Team. Awaiting signoff from RBC CCTV Steering Group. 
 

          

N2108 Implement plans to develop more cohesive and integrated communities 30 September 2021 
 
  

 
70% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2108.A 
Consult with partners, statutory, community, voluntary, faith sector and Action Together to 
develop insight trackers to collect appropriate information in enhance tension monitoring process 
and enhance community cohesion 

30 September 2021 
 
  

 
60% 

P
age 65



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  7  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

  
Attendance and contribution to monthly “Community & Faith Group” meetings to address insight, concerns and future planning for integration of faith and non-faith 
communities across the borough. Attendance and RBC representation since 2020 at fortnightly Grassroots gathering meeting with communities to understand concerns 
and needs and developing appropriate partnership actions with stakeholders to address any unmet needs and mitigate emerging community concerns e.g. ASB, underage 
sales, speeding, vandalism, criminal exploitation etc. Relevant insight from both meetings above are escalated to relevant stakeholder for action and an update provided 
to the community at the next meeting which increases resident/stakeholder satisfaction. 
 

N2108.B 
Recruit 20 Health Equality Champions to deliver over 5000 health improvements amongst BAME 
(including Gypsy, Roma, Eastern European, disabled and older people and reduce health 
inequalities in line with Covid recovery plans 

30 June 2021 
 
  

 
80%  

  
We have exceeded the target and recruited 45 Health Champions across the borough from different communities and genders. From April 2021 to July 2021 – approx. 
3365 direct conversations with residents have taken place through various platforms which include face to face and virtual webinars. This will continue through to the end 
of the year. In addition, other media platforms have been utilised such as Radio, social media and Satellite TV to engage, educate, empower, and raise awareness which 
has a potential reach of 000’s. 
 

  

N2109 Develop the role of the In-house Contact Centre within internally and with external partners, in 
line with the agreed future vision 

31 October 2021 
 
  

 
41% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2109.A Sign off and communicate future vision, objectives and priorities for the Contact Centre 30 June 2021 
 
  

 
60% 

  
Future vision has been signed off and is being communicated to Services and ELT. 
 

N2109.B Review Contact Centre performance framework 30 September 2021 
 
  

 
30% 

  
Started to review current processes and performance management framework. 
 

P
age 66



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  8  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

N2109.C Develop opportunities for future working with Health and Social Care colleagues 31 October 2021 
 
  

 
35% 

  
Work has started with NHS and Public Health with a view to develop a 'single front door' for initial customer contact with health and social care. 
 

  

N2110 Reform and integration : Advance the integration of services in line with the Greater 
Manchester model through delivery of 3 key programmes of work during 2021-22 

31 March 2022 
 
  

 
47% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2110.A 
Progress a prevention and recovery strategy by bringing together case work across directorates 
(place team; recovery and re-ablement) Maintain cooperative outcomes (including demand 
reduction) at a case and place level 

31 December 2021 
 
  

 
25% 

Mapping of existing work begun including case work and caseloads, and systems. Successful (outside) consultation event held in mid-July to gather intelligence and insight 
from across the system (including people facing multiple disadvantage) in relation to the Prevention and Recovery element. This type of consultation also being reviewed 
by independent people of the council to consider the approach as a method for consulting for other activities/services. The information from the event is currently being 
collated and will lead to further events/sessions in September/October and a final review in December. 
 

N2110.B 
Deliver MHCLG funded (£500k) community champions programmes; reducing barriers to health 
improvement (Covid and non-Covid) 

31 December 2021 
 
  

 
95% 

 All 13 strands of the Community Champions programme commenced, and funding transferred with SLA/Variation of contract.  
Wider Delivery Partnership (of all partners) established and met monthly. Currently considering legacy pathways for Health Inequalities. 
All Delta returns completed to MHCLG. 
Case Study completed for MHCLG. 
Presentation to a National MHCLG Webinar on our CHC programme supporting minority ethnic communities delivered in July 2021. 
 

N2110.C Rochdale Borough is the first Good Help ‘place’ in the UK. Deliver the 2021-22 Good Help Plan 31 March 2022 
 
  

 
20% 

  
Good Help seminar delivered to front line staff and further workshop planned in Sept/Oct. To support the prevention in neighbourhoods work – development of potential 
GH networks and GH neighbourhood service model. This will include development with the VCFSE sector in terms of workforce as well as GH in Integrated Neighbourhood 

P
age 67



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  9  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Teams (INT) training. Digital GH (including supporting digital support for older people in line with GM Strategy) and a webinar Digital GH. Other opportunities include a GH 
Academy to support GH learning across the system.  
 

  

N2111 Review and build from the Council and borough’s community response to COVID 31 October 2021 
 
  

 
62% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2111.A 
Review Council’s community response to pandemic with partners to ensure lessons and best 
practice identified 

31 July 2021 
 
  

 
100% 

Two review sessions have taken place with council colleagues around lessons learnt from the pandemic, best practice and issues that will assist long-term community 
recovery from the pandemic. These have been fed back to Joint Senior Leadership Team and the portfolio holder. The Council has been shortlisted in the MJ Awards 
under the Community Heroes category for the work of the Covid Community Response team. 
 

N2111.B 
Agree a plan for mainstreaming support to those households most impacted, including Clinically 
Extreme Vulnerable 

31 October 2021 
 
  

 
25% 

 A draft plan has been developed following the above review sessions. A range of key projects and documents, including the Council’s Prevention Strategy are being 
developed to help build on longer-term support for vulnerable households 

 

P
age 68



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting  
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate Delivery 
Report Author Carolyn Goddard 

 

Public/Private Document  

 

 

Council Tax Discount for Care Leavers 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. This report seeks approval to amend the criteria for the 100% council tax 

discount scheme for care leavers who live in the borough aged 18 to 25 with 
effect from 1 November 2021.  

 
Recommendation 

 
2. That Cabinet notes the proposal and that approval will be sought from 

Council on 13 October 2021 to agree the change to the criteria.    
 
 

Reason for Recommendation 
 
3.1 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
 

On 1 March 2017, Council introduced a 100% council tax discount scheme 
for care leavers who live in the Borough aged 18 to 20 years.   
 
On 12 December 2018, Council extended the scheme to care leavers who 
live in the Borough to aged 18 to 25 years. This reflected the Government 
change to extend the Council’s corporate parenting responsibility to 25 
years.  
 
A care leaver was defined as a person who has been in the care of the local 
authority for at least 13 weeks since the age of 14 and who was in care on 
their 16th birthday.  
 
All Greater Manchester authorities agreed to provide a council tax discount 
scheme using this definition.  
 
Because the definition excludes those care leavers who go into care after 
their 16th birthday these care leavers aren’t eligible for the council tax 
discount and so the other Greater Manchester authorities have agreed to 
amend their council tax discount schemes using the following definition: 
 

Page 69

Agenda Item 10



 
A person who has been in the care of the local authority for at least 13 
weeks since the age of 14, including some time after their 16th birthday.  
 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 

Corporate parenting is a statutory function of the Council.  The underlying 
principle is that every local authority will seek the same outcomes for children 
and young people in care that every good parent would want for their children. 
 
Children and young people who are looked after by their local authority rather 
than their parents are amongst the most vulnerable groups in our community.  
Outcomes for this group are generally poor and, as corporate parents, the 
Council has the responsibility to keep them safe, make sure their experiences 
in care are positive and improve their on-going life chances.   
 
A report by The Children’s Society (The Wolf at the Door. How council tax debt 
collection is harming children) suggests that care leavers are a particularly 
vulnerable group for council tax debt.  If found that often, when care leavers 
move into independent accommodation, managing their own budget fully for 
the first time can be challenging for care leavers, particularly if they fall behind 
on their council tax payments.   
 
This is true for the majority of care leavers in Rochdale who are responsible 
for payment of council tax and the council tax discount scheme for care 
leavers was introduced to alleviate the challenges faced by care leavers.  
 
Care Leavers who have no recourse to public funds will be excluded from the 
discount.  
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
The council tax discount scheme for care leavers could remain as present.  
The outcome being that Rochdale care leavers are treated differently to other 
Greater Manchester authorities and they potentially accrue debt at an earlier 
age at the outset of their independent lives which the Council is compelled to 
pursue with the detrimental impacts this could cause.    
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. 130 care leavers are currently receiving a council tax discount at an annual 

cost of £145,023.68.  It is anticipated that the proposed change will increase 
the annual cost but not significantly.  

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. The change to the policy will benefit all those care leavers living in the 

Rochdale area irrespective of their age, gender or all other categories.  An 
equality impact assessment was undertaken in September 2018.  This has 

Page 70



been reviewed and the proposed change to the eligibility criteria for the 
council tax discount does not impact on this.   
 
 

Consultation 
 
7. None required.  

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. None  

 

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Goddard, Tel: 01706 926051, 
Carolyn.Goddard@Rochdale.Gov.Uk 

Page 71



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 27th July 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for  

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Julie Murphy 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Budget 2022/23 to 2024/25 -  
Guidelines, Timetable and Budget Update 

 
 

Executive Summary 
 
1. 
 
 
 
2. 
 

To recommend the budget guidelines and timetable to be used in preparing 
the detailed 2022/23 Budget and provisional budgets for 2023/24 and 
2024/25. 
 
To provide an updated budget position for the Council for 2022/23 to 2024/25. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
2.1.1 
 
2.1.2 
 
 
2.1.3 
 
2.1.4 
 
2.2 
 
 

Cabinet is requested to consider and approve the following: 
 
The proposed budget timetable detailed at Appendix 1. 

 
The revenue assumptions, detailed in Appendix 2, to be incorporated into the 
budget setting process. 

 
The revenue budget principles detailed in Appendix 3. 
 
The capital budget principles detailed in Appendix 4.  

 
Cabinet is asked to note the Revenue Budget update provided in this report. 
 

Reason for Recommendation 
 
3.1 
 
 
 

Under the Budget & Policy Framework, Cabinet is required to approve the 
proposed guidelines and timetable for setting the 2022/23 Budget and 
Provisional Budgets for 2023/24 and 2024/25 by September. 

Key Points for Consideration 
 

Page 72

Agenda Item 11



4.1 
 
4.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.3 
 
4.1.4 
 
4.2 
 
4.2.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.4 
 
 
4.2.5 
 
 
 
4.2.6 
 
 
 
 

Timetable 
 

The Council’s budget must be approved by full Council before 11th March 
each year. This is a statutory requirement. The process begins in July with 
approval being sought for the assumptions and principles on which the 
budget is to be based. These will be used as a part of the determination of 
the overall budget position. 

 
Throughout the year, we consult on the budget.  Financial projections are 
updated as further information becomes available in relation to the Local 
Government Finance Settlement and other known changes, including local 
decisions. The updated budget and feedback from any consultations are 
reported back to Cabinet in February with recommendations for Budget 
Council, who in turn set the budget. 

 
Services are notified of their budgets following Budget Council in February. 
 
The full budget timetable is provided at Appendix 1. 
 
Revenue Budget update 2022/23 to 2024/25 
 
As part of the budget setting process, the Council makes a number of 
assumptions in respect of the key elements of the Council’s revenue budget.  
Appendix 2 provides a summary of these assumptions for 2022/23, 2023/24 
and 2024/25.  
 
Provisional budget assumptions for 2022/23 and 2023/24 were approved at 
Budget Council 3rd March 2021. The budget assumptions have been 
reviewed and updated in the light of the ongoing financial implications of the 
pandemic and other known factors. Future reports will make Cabinet aware 
of any changes that impact on the budget assumptions. 
 
It must be noted that there is significant uncertainty as to the level of 
government funding for local authorities beyond the current financial year. 
The government provided a one-year funding settlement for 2021/22, and 
the wider reforms to local government funding were delayed till 2022/23 at 
the earliest. No further information on the proposed reforms has been 
released by the government at this stage.  
    
There is also significant uncertainty over the ongoing impact of the 
pandemic on the Council’s expenditure and income levels for future years.  
 
The updated Budget position for 2022/23 to 2024/25 is based on the best 
estimates at this point in time, and these will be reviewed throughout the 
budget process as more information becomes available.  
 
Table 1 summarises the updated Budget position 2022/23 to 2024/35 based 
on the changes to budget assumptions, and the proposed mitigating actions 
in order to achieve a balanced budget for 2022/23. Further detail is provided 
in sections 4.3 to 4.6 of this report. 
 

Page 73



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.7 
 
 
 
 
4.2.8 
 
 
 
4.2.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.10 
 
 
 
42.11 
 
 

4.3 
 
4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 1 Updated Budget Gap 2022/23 to 2024/25 
 

  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
  £m £m £m 
        
Budget Council March 2021 5.127 13.380 15.548 
        
Changes to Budget Assumptions 2.673 2.672 2.664 
        
Updated Budget Gap 7.800 16.052 18.212 
        
Mitigating Actions (7.800) (5.900) (5.900) 
        
Updated Budget Gap 0.000 10.152 12.312 

 
Since 2010/11 the Council has made ongoing savings of £185.5m from its 
Revenue Budget. It is proposed that there will be no savings programme for 
2022/23. Any short-term budget gaps will be smoothed via the use of 
reserves. 
 
The 2022/23 budget process will instead examine the medium to long term 
transformation of services, looking at how services are delivered rather than 
stopping services. 
 
The Transformation approach will involve: 

 The identification of key projects. 
 A Member Board to determine direction of travel and to provide 

oversight and scrutiny. 
 An Officer Board to ensure delivery of key projects. 
 The exploration of further opportunities from the Capital Programme; 

Treasury Management; the use of Reserves; the maximization of 
Collection Fund income; and the use of Artificial Intelligence. 
 

Budget challenge sessions to be held over summer to support the budget 
for 2023/24 onwards. A savings programme driven from Portfolio Holder 
discussions will be used to support the 2023/24 Budget onwards. 

 
In addition income generation sessions will be held with each Director with 
the Leader and Director of Resources, these sessions focusing on 
maximising income opportunities to support the budget gap from 2023/24 
onwards. 
 
Budget Issues 
 
Council Tax Increase 
For planning purposes, a general increase in Council Tax of 1.99% has 
been assumed for 2022/23 in line with expected referendum limits. A 1.99% 
increase has been assumed for both 2023/24 and 2024/25.  
 

Page 74



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The government has not yet made an announcement on the future of the 
Adult Social Care precept. For planning purposes no precept has been 
assumed for 2022/23, 2023/24 and 2024/25. 
 
Any variation in the level of Council Tax increase approved will have an 
impact on the forecast budget position. The impact of a 1% variation in the 
assumed Council Tax increase is approximately £0.9m. 
 
In February 2022 Cabinet will recommend the 2022/23 Council Tax to 
Budget Council for approval. 
  
Council Tax Base 
A Council Tax base for 2021/22 of 54,637 was approved by Council on 16th 
December 2020, representing the number of Band D equivalent properties 
that we collect Council Tax from. 
 
The Council Tax base will be kept under review throughout the budget 
process, in particular the ongoing impact of the pandemic on: the estimated 
growth in new properties; the cost of the Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme; and the estimated collection rate. 

 
The Council Tax base for 2022/23 will be reviewed and formally considered 
by Cabinet on 15th December 2021.  
 
Business Rates 
In 2021/22 Rochdale continues to be part of the Greater Manchester pilot 
for 100% Business Rates Retention, which commenced in 2017/18.  The 
pilot authorities each retain 100% of locally-raised business rates. In return 
GM authorities forgo Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and the Public Health 
Grant. Authorities’ tariffs and top-ups are adjusted to ensure that these 
changes are without detriment to individual authorities.  
 
Business Rates growth income achieved under the pilot scheme is retained 
locally and shared 50/50 between the individual authorities and the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority. For planning purposes it has been 
assumed that the GM 100% Business Rates pilot will continue from 
2022/23, although this is unknown at this stage.  
 
Business Rates charges are set by the government and increase in line with 
Consumer Prices Index (CPI) at September each year. The budget 
assumes an increase of 1.2% for 2022/23, 1.6% for 2023/24 and 1.7% for 
2023/24, in line with the latest CPI estimates from the Office for Budget 
Responsibility.  
 
The assumptions on Business Rates income will be kept under review 
throughout the budget process, in particular the ongoing impact of the 
pandemic on the estimated growth in total rateable values; the estimated 
level of unoccupied property relief; the estimated contribution to the bad 
debt provision; and the estimated contribution to the provision for appeals. 
 

Page 75



 
 
 
4.3.4 
 
 
 
4.3.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.8 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.9 
 
 

The Business Rates base 2022/23 will be reviewed and formally considered 
by Cabinet on 15th December 2021. 
 
A model has been developed to utilise the Council’s reserves to smooth the 
impact of estimated loss of Council Tax and Business Rates income 
resulting from the pandemic on the Revenue Budget. 
 
Manchester Airport Group Dividend 
The Council holds 3.22% of the issued share capital in the Manchester 
Airport Group. The pandemic has had a significant impact on airports and 
the aviation industry. Based on the latest projections supplied by 
Manchester Airport Group, the Council is not expected to receive a dividend 
until 2025/26. 
 
A model has been developed to utilise the Council’s reserves to smooth the 
impact of estimated resulting loss of income for the Manchester Airport on 
the Revenue Budget. 
 
Local Government Funding Reforms  
A one-off funding settlement was announced for 2020/21 ahead of a multi-
year Spending Review in 2021. Major reforms to the local government 
funding system are expected to be introduced from 2022/23 onwards. 
These include the resetting of Business Rates baselines, the Fair Funding 
Review, and the proposed move to 75% Business Rates Retention.  
 
At this stage the impact of these reforms on individual authorities is 
unknown.  The provisional budgets for 2022/23 to 2024/25 currently 
assume that any impact of the reforms will be neutral, taking account of the 
potential level of funding for local government and the transitional 
arrangements expected to be put in place. These assumptions will be 
reviewed as further information on the proposed reforms becomes 
available. 
 
Funding for Social Care 
The 2021/22 final settlement included an additional £2m of grant funding for 
Social Care, and a continuation of all existing Social Care grants. 
Rochdale’s total Social Care grant funding for 2021/22 was £8.985m. No 
information has been provided by the government on grant allocations for 
2022/23 to 2024/25. For planning purposed the budget assumes the same 
funding level as 2021/22 for 2022/23, with additional Social Care funding of  
£2m assumed in 2023/24 and 2024/25 for planning purposes. 

 
Improved Better Care Fund 
Rochdale’s 2021/22 Improved Better Care Fund allocation was £11.917m. 
No information has been provided by the government on grant allocations 
for 2022/23 to 2024/25. For planning purposed the budget assumes the 
same funding level as 2021/22. 
 
Lower Tiers Services Grant 
As part of the 2021/22 Finance Settlement Rochdale received a new Lower 
Tiers Services Grant of £0.362m. No information has been provided by the 

Page 76



 
 
 
4.3.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
4.4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4.4 
 
 
 
 
4.4.5 
 
 
 
 

government on grant allocations for 2022/23 to 2024/25. For planning 
purposed the budget assumes the same funding level as 2021/22 
 
New Homes Bonus 
In February 2021 the government published a consultation seeking views 
on the future of the New Homes Bonus from 2022/23 onwards, setting out 
a variety of options for reforming the New Homes Bonus. The government 
has yet to publish the results of the consultation. At this stage the budget 
assumes that from 2022/23 there will be no further New Homes Bonus 
allocations, with only remaining legacy payments expected to be received 
in 2022/23. 
 
Budget Growth/Pressures 
 
Social Care  
The Budget allows for estimated growth in Adult Care and Children’s 
Services as a result of demographic issues. The Budget also recognises 
the estimated financial implications of demand pressures on Adult Care and 
Children’s Services budgets.  
 
Cabinet 1st October 2019 approved the overall investment strategy for 
Children’s Social Care. Funding for the continuing financial implications of 
the Children’s Strategy has been included in the budget.  
 
The budget also provides funding for Adult Care pressures, particularly in 
relation to commissioning. The budget assumes ongoing Adult Care 
pressures of £1m. The impact of the National Living Wage and Real Living 
Wage on Adult Care contracts is also built into the budget.  
 
Rochdale Riverside 
The budget approved at Budget Council 3rd March 2021 included £0.750m 
in relation to the estimated shortfall in income from the Rochdale Riverside 
scheme. This has been increased by a further £0.350m. 
 
Highways Maintenance Contract 
Cabinet 25th February 2021 approved the option to deliver the whole of the 
revenue funded Highways Maintenance service in-house, with capital 
funded works being delivered via procurement compliant frameworks. An 
additional £0.300m has been added to the budget to cover the ongoing 
revenue implications of this decision. 
 
Property Growth Fund  
The budget has been increased by £0.426m to offset the estimated income 
shortfall in relation to the Property Growth Fund, in order to align income 
targets with investments 
 
Housing Benefit/Local Council Tax Support Scheme Administration 
Grants 
The Council receives grants from the government for the administration of 
Housing Benefit and the Local Council Tax Support Scheme. The Council 
has yet to receive notification of the level of grants for 2022/23 and future 

Page 77



 
 
 
4.4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4.7 
 
 
 
4.4.9 
 
 
 
4.4.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
4.5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.2 
 
 
 
 
4.5.3 
 
 

years. The budget has been increased by £0.350m to reflect the shortfall in 
the expected grant compared to estimated expenditure. 
 
Homelessness Contract 
The Homelessness contract has been funded from the VAT shelter receipts 
resulting from the Housing Stock transfer in 2012/13. As this funding stream 
is gradually reducing, an additional £0.500m has been built into the budget 
to cover the annual cost of the Homelessness Contract. 
 
Member Initiatives 
The budget includes £0.400m to support the revenue cost of Member 
initiatives. These will be subject to separate approval. 
 
Contingency 
A contingency of £1.0m has been built into the budget to cover any unknown 
pressures that arise during the budget process. 
 
Other Minor Budget Adjustments 

 Link4Life Management Fee – a reduction of £0.133m in the 
Management Fee following a review of staffing structures.  

 Business Rates Top-up grant – a £0.156m increase in assumed level 
of funding for 2022/23 to 2024/25, in line with the 2021/22 Top-up 
grant following adjustments to the Final Local Government Finance 
Settlement 2021/22. 

 Lead local authority flood grant – a reduction in grant income of 
£0.015m following the cessation of this government funding. 

 
General Budget Assumptions 
 
Pay Inflation 
The budget assumes for planning purposes that the 2022/23 pay award will 
be 1.5%, compared to the 2% increase assumed in the in the provisional 
budget approved at Budget Council March 2021. This is in line with the 
current pay offer for 2021/22, and results in a decrease in the revenue 
budget requirement of £0.373m in 2022/23. 
 
A 2% increase has been assumed for 2023/24 and 2024/25. Any settlement 
above the assumed increase would increase the expenditure requirement 
for the Council.  
 
The budget also reflects the Council’s commitment to pay, based on the 
Local Living Wage Rates for employees.  

 
Increments 
The Council operates a biennial incremental progression policy. An 
additional £1m is added to the budget to reflect the estimated additional 
costs in each increment year. 
 
Superannuation Rates 
In 2020/21 the Council made an upfront contribution to the pension fund. 
This means that the employer superannuation contribution rate can remain 

Page 78



 
 
 
4.5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.7 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.8 
 
 
 
4.5.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 

at the 2020/21 level of 20.5% for both 2021/22 and 2022/23. An increase of 
0.9% in the contribution rate has been assumed in 2023/24. 
 
Price Inflation 
The budget assumes 0% inflation per annum across the majority of the 
Council’s non-pay expenditure budgets. Contractual arrangements and 
other significant inflation issues will be considered on a case by case basis. 
The budget includes an additional £0.500m p.a. to cover the estimated 
annual cost of inflation on contractual arrangements and other significant 
inflation issues. 

 
Discretionary Fees and Charges 
Discretionary Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. A 2% 
increase p.a. in Discretionary Fees and Charges has been assumed for 
2022/23 to 2024/25. This is subject to agreed exemptions, in line with the 
approach taken in 2021/22. This will generate additional income of 
approximately £0.070m p.a. 
 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) Waste Disposal Levy 
The Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a formula across Greater 
Manchester which takes account of recycling levels. If Rochdale Borough 
did not increase recycling at the same level as other GM Authorities, there 
would be an impact on the waste disposal levy charged to the Council. 
 
The Waste Disposal Levy assumed for in the budget is based on the latest 
projections provided by GMCA. The Waste Disposal levy is estimated for 
planning purposes to increase by 0.4% in 2022/23, 1.0% in 2023/24 and 
1.7% in 2024/25. The Waste Disposal Levy will be subject to the GMCA 
budget setting process in 2022/23 and subsequent years. 
 
GMCA Passenger Transport Levy 
The budget assumes a 1% increase per annum in the underlying Passenger 
Transport Levy for 2022/23 to 2024/25. The Passenger Transport Levy will 
be subject to the GMCA budget setting process in 2022/23 and subsequent 
years. 
 
GMCA Initiatives 
Funding for any GMCA initiatives that have financial implications for 
individual authorities will be considered on a case by case basis. 
 
Integration of Health & Social Care 
From 2018/19 the Local Authority has been required to operate a formal 
pooled budget arrangement for health and social care, as part of the GM 
Health & Social Care Transformation Funding Programme. The pooled 
budget brings together resources from a range of organisations including 
the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), the Local Authority, Better Care 
Funds and GM level resources to invest in transformation of service 
delivery, (known as Transformation Funding).  
 
Proposed actions to mitigate the ongoing financial impact of the 
pandemic and other budget pressures 

Page 79



 
4.6.1 
 
 
 
4.6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6.4 
 
 
 
 
4.6.5 
 
 
4.7 
 
4.7.1 
 
 
4.7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7.3 
 
 
 
 
 

 
A number of actions have been identified in order to help mitigate the 
estimated ongoing financial impact of the pandemic and the other known 
budget pressures. 
 
A review of the Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2025/26 will be undertaken 
to establish which projects could be delayed or cancelled in order to reduce 
the impact of borrowing costs on the Council’s revenue budget. It is 
estimated that this review will generate savings in the revenue budget of 
£0.500m. 
 
The model that has been developed to utilise the Council’s reserves to 
smooth the impact of estimated loss of Council Tax, Business Rates and 
Manchester Airport income due to the pandemic on the Revenue Budget 
has been reviewed. It is proposed to delay the repayment of reserves in 
2022/23. This would reduce the budget by £3.9m in 2022/23, while still 
allowing reserves to be replenished to their previous level within 10 years. 
The smoothing model will be reviewed in the light of the latest information 
on Council Tax, Business Rates and Manchester Airport income. 
 
Following an initial review of Reserve budgets, it is proposed to remove the 
budget for the contribution to Reserves from Business Rates growth 
resulting from the GM 100% Retention pilot. This would reduce the budget 
by £3.4m.   
 
A further review of Treasury Management and Reserve budgets will be 
undertaken, with the aim of generating savings in the revenue budget. 
 
Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27 
 
The Council’s Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy was approved at 
Budget Council on 3rd March 2021. 
 
The Strategy addresses the longer term aspirations for the Borough with 
capital requirements, and details the short to medium term capital spend in 
a five year programme. The Programme aims to: 
 

 Deliver investment in the Borough to support the Borough wide 
priorities, including economic benefit and gross value added to the 
Borough. 

 Deliver investment in Service Provision to deliver future savings.  
 Maintain and enhance the Council’s assets. 
 Meet statutory provision. 
 Provide Value for Money. 

 
The Capital Programme continues to align with the Council’s priorities: 
 

 Place Plan – aligning capital investment to support the Borough’s 
economic growth potential and continue to regenerate our town 
centres. 

Page 80



 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7.5 
 
 
4.7.6 
 
 
4.7.7 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
4.8.1 
 
 
 
 
4.8.2 
 
 
 
 
4.8.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Corporate Plan – ensuring the borough maintains its high standard 
of quality building and public space to address the climate 
emergency. 

 Asset Strategy – aiming to hold fewer but more efficient assets, 
realising maximum value from the estate whilst safeguarding its staff, 
customers and other building users. 
 

The programme will be categorised into themes to understand 
interdependencies with other schemes and the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy. The categories are: 
 

 Operational – projects which are required to ensure ongoing service 
delivery, such as vehicle replacement and asset management. 

 Contractual – projects which are already under contract or in the late 
stages of negotiation. 

 Match funding – projects with match funding which would be a loss 
to the Council and future external funding. 

 Invest-to-save – projects which will bring in additional income or 
reduce costs going forward. 

 Growth – projects that will attract growth to the borough increasing 
Council tax and / or Business Rates. 

 Town Centre – projects which enhance the Town Centre. 
 
The review of the capital programme 2021/22 will also feed into the Capital 
Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27. 
 
The budget does not provide for the revenue costs of any increase in Capital 
Programme spend and therefore schemes will need to be prioritised. 
 
A report to Cabinet on 26th October 2021 will recommend the Capital 
Programme for 2022/23 to 2026/27 for consultation. 
 
Education and related budgets 
 
Most education and related budgets are funded through a specific grant, the 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). Separate systems and procedures relating 
to DSG funded budgets operate outside of the mainstream budget 
guidelines.   
 
There are 4 DSG blocks; Schools; High Needs (HNB); Central Schools 
Service Block (CSSB); and Early Years. Schools, HNB and CSSB are all 
driven by the October schools census. The 2022/23 final allocations will be 
received in December 2021. 
 
Schools indicative modelling begins around September/October when the 
Department for Education (DfE) issues the Authority Proforma Tool (APT) 
and notifies Local Authorities of any changes to the national funding 
formula. If there is any significant change to the formula the LA has to 
consult with schools. The LA reports to Schools Forum in December, 
irrespective of whether there have been any major changes. 
 

Page 81



4.8.4 
 
 
 
4.8.5 
 
 
 
 
4.8.6 
 
 
 
4.8.7 
 
 
 
4.8.8 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
4.9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.9.2 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
4.10.1 

On receipt of the final DSG allocation in December, the APT is updated and 
has to be submitted to the DfE by 21st January. Schools are then notified of 
their budgets.  
 
Any block transfers requested are made at October Schools Forum, with 
the limit being 0.5% transfer from a single block. Anything above this limit 
would require the LA to make a disapplication request to the Secretary of 
State. 
 
The CSSB Budget requires forum approval, and is submitted as a proposal 
at October forum and for decision at December forum. Schools de-
delegated of budgets for central services are reported at the same time. 
 
Growth funding forms part of the Schools Block, but any requests for 
additional growth funding need to be approved by forum as this is top-sliced 
from the Schools Block. This is this usually done at December forum. 
 
Early Years funding is lagged, and the Local Authority does not receive the 
final allocation until July following the year end.  The guidance states the 
Council can centrally retain up to 5% of the Early Years block funding for 
central services, which is agreed at December forum. 
 
Budget Principles 

 
Revenue Budget Principles - detailed guidelines are provided to all relevant 
staff to ensure that revenue budgets for individual services are prepared 
consistently. These guidelines contain details of the assumptions that are 
to be made in setting the revenue budget, and also set out broad principles 
that are to be adhered to. The principles that are proposed for inclusion in 
the budget guidelines for 2022/23 to 2024/25 are provided at Appendix 3. 

 
Capital Programme Principles have been developed to enable focus on the 
purpose of the Capital Programme and to seek agreement for the use of 
limited resources. The principles for the Capital Programme are provided at 
Appendix 4. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting 
process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is equally 
important that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are 
agreed, reasonable and consistently applied by all services. 
 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 
 
5.1 Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report. 

 
 
 
 

Page 82



Risk and Policy Implications 
 
6.1 
 
6.1.1 
 
 
 
6.1.2 
 
 
 
6.1.3 
 
 
 
6.1.4 
 
 
 
 
6.1.5 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.7 
 
 
6.1.8 
 
 
6.1.9 
 
 
 
 
 

Risk Implications  
 
The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known 
levels of expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation 
of these assumptions is not expected to be known until December 2021.  

 
There are a number of areas of the Council’s budget where risks to the 
projections contained in this report have been identified. The most 
significant of these are detailed below. 
 
Ongoing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic – the budget assumptions will be 
kept under review as more information becomes available on the ongoing 
impact of the pandemic on Council services.  

 
Monitoring of the 2021/22 budget will provide Cabinet with regular updates 
on any budget pressures and savings for the Council. Any associated 
ongoing implications will be incorporated into the budget projections for 
2022/23 and future years.  

 
Government Funding – the level of government funding that the Council will 
receive in 2022/23 to 2024/25, including the Improved Better Care Fund and 
Social Care grant, is unknown at this stage. This will be dependent on the 
Spending Review 2021, the Local Government Finance Settlement 2022/23 
and the funding reforms scheduled for 2022/23. 

 
Council Tax increase – Central Government provides a cap on the Council 
Tax increase a Local Authority can make before a referendum of the local 
residents is required. The referendum limit for 2021/22 was a 1.99% 
increase. It is not known whether the government will allow any further Adult 
Social Care precept. A 1.99% general increase has been assumed for 
2022/23, with no social care precept assumed at this stage. The 
assumptions included in this report are for planning purposes only, and will 
be reviewed by Cabinet leading up to a Council Tax recommendation at 
Budget Council. The impact of a 1% change in the level of Council Tax 
increase would be approximately £0.9m. 

 
Council Tax Collection – the ongoing impact of the pandemic or other 
economic factors could affect the level of Council Tax collection. 

 
Council Tax Base – the estimated growth in new properties could be 
affected by the ongoing impact of the pandemic or other economic factors. 

 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme – the budget assumes that the Local 
Council Tax Support Scheme remains unchanged. The impact on the 
budget of a 5% change in the maximum discount allowed (currently 85%) 
would be approximately £0.6m. The ongoing impact of the pandemic or 
other economic factors could also affect the level of take up of the scheme. 

 

Page 83



6.1.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.11 
 
 
 
 
6.1.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.13 
 
 
 
6.1.14 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.15 
 
 
 
6.1.16 
 
 
 
 
6.1.17 
 
 
 
6.1.18 
 
 
 
 
6.1.19 
 

Business Rates – it has been assumed for planning purposes that the 
Greater Manchester 100% Retention pilot scheme will continue in 2022/23. 
Once the government’s proposals for the Business Rates retention system 
become clear the financial implications will be reviewed and the budget 
assumptions updated. The ongoing impact of the pandemic or other 
economic factors could affect the level of Business Rates income collected, 
the estimated growth in rateable values, or the estimated number of 
unoccupied properties.  

 
Council Services - the economic climate following the pandemic, other 
economic issues or general demographic changes could impact on the 
residents of the borough, leading to an increased cost of, or demand for, 
Council services.  

 
Health and Social Care Devolution – the impact of pooling budgets with the 
Clinical Commissioning Group within a Pooled Budget. The financial risk is 
that the investment in Health and Social Care services does not deliver the 
benefits assumed. These benefits are required not only to fund interventions 
to invest to save in the long term, but also to contribute towards closing the 
budget gaps of all partners delivering Health and Social Care services. 

 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) budgets – there is a risk 
that the ongoing impact of the pandemic could affect the level of levies and 
other charges to districts. 
 
Waste Disposal Levy – the Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a formula 
across Greater Manchester, which takes account of recycling levels. If 
Rochdale did not increase recycling at the same level as other GM 
Authorities this would impact on the levy, resulting in an increased cost to 
the Council.  
 
Pay Award – the budget currently assumes a 1.5% pay award in 2022/23. 
An increase in the pay award of an additional 1% would increase the 
Council’s budget by approximately £0.7m. 
 
Inflation – impact of changes in the price of goods and services used by the 
Council compared to the percentage assumed in the budget projections. A 
1% increase in price inflation equates to an increase in the budget of 
approximately £0.6m. 
 
Fees and charges income – the impact of any economic slowdown on levels 
of usage of charged-for Council services could lead to income levels not 
being achieved. 

 
Manchester Airport Group dividend – the amount of dividend received will 
be dependent on the performance of the Manchester Airport Group. The 
pandemic has had a significant impact on the Airport, and no dividend is 
anticipated until 2025/26. 
 
Investment income – the impact of low interest rates and implications of any 
economic factors on the level of dividends/interest received by the Council. 

Page 84



 
Academies – the impact of any schools converting to Academies on the 
Council’s budget. 

 
Legal Implications 
 
The Council is under a duty to calculate the budget in accordance with 
Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and must make three 
calculations namely: an estimate of the Council’s gross revenue 
expenditure; an estimate of anticipated income; and a calculation of the 
difference between the two. The amount of the budget requirement must be 
sufficient to meet the Council’s budget commitments and ensure a balanced 
budget. The amount of the budget requirement must leave the Council with 
adequate financial reserves. The level of budget requirement must not be 
unreasonable having regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its Council Tax 
payers and non-domestic rate payers.   
 
Failure to make a lawful Council Tax on or before 11th March could have 
serious financial results for the Council and make the Council vulnerable to 
an Order from the Courts requiring it to make a specified increase in Council 
Tax. 
 
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on 
local authorities to make arrangements for ‘the proper administration of their 
financial affairs'. 
  
Information must be published and included in the Council Tax demand 
notice. The Secretary of State has made regulations, which require charging 
authorities to issue demand notices in a form and with contents prescribed 
by these regulations.  
 
There is also a duty under Section 65 of the 1992 Act to consult persons or 
bodies appearing to be representative of persons subject to non-domestic 
rates in each area about proposals for expenditure (including capital 
expenditure) for each financial year. 

 
6.1.20 
 
 
6.2 
 
6.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2.2 
 
 
 
 
6.2.3 
 
 
 
6.2.4 
 
 
 
 
6.2.5 
 
 
 
  

Consultation 
 
7.1 
 
 
7.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.1.2 
 
 

 Consultation will be undertaken throughout the year on various aspects of 
the budget setting process.  
 
Discretionary Fees and Charges – the proposed fees and charges for 
2022/23 will be brought forward for consultation with Cabinet on 26th October 
2021 and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 16th November 
2021. Following consultation the fees and charges for 2022/23 will be 
recommended by Cabinet on 10th February 2022 for approval at Budget 
Council on 23rd February 2022. 
 
An updated Revenue Budget 2022/23 to 2024/25 and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy will be reported to Cabinet on 26th October 2021, and 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 16th November 2021. The 

Page 85



 
 
 
 
7.1.3 
 
 
 
 

Revenue Budget 2022/23 and provisional budgets for 2023/24 and 2024/25, 
and the Council Tax 2022/23, will be recommended by Cabinet on 10th 
February 2022 for approval at Budget Council on 23rd February 2022. 
 
Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27 - the proposed Capital Programme 
for 2022/23 will be brought forward for consultation with Cabinet on 26th 
October 2021 and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 16th 
November 2021. Consultation will also be undertaken with Township 
Committees. Following consultation the Capital Programme 2022/23 to 
2026/27 will be recommended by Cabinet on 10th February 2022 for 
approval at Budget Council on 23rd February 2022. 
 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
 
8. None  

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith 
samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 924198 

  

Page 86

mailto:samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1  
Budget Timetable 2022/23 to 2024/25 – Key Dates 

Date  Meeting/Event Purpose 

2021     
Cabinet Cabinet 27 July 
Corporate O&S Corporate O&S 14 September 
    

July  

    1. Budget Update, Guidelines and Timetable 
October/ Cabinet Cabinet 26 October 
November Corporate O&S Corporate O&S 16 November 
      
    1. Discretionary Fees & Charges for Consultation 
    2. Revenue Budget 2022/23 to 2024/25 & MTFS Update 

3. Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27 for Consultation 

November/ Corporate O&S Corporate O&S 16 November 
December Cabinet  Cabinet 14 December 
  Council Council 15 December 
      
    1. Council Tax and Business Rates bases 2022/23 

December Announcement Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 

2022     
January/ 
February Announcement Final Local Government Finance Settlement 

Corporate O&S Corporate O&S 8 February 
Cabinet Cabinet 10 February 
Budget Council Budget Council 23 February (Alternative 2 March) 
    
  1. Treasury Management Strategy 
  2. Medium Term Financial Strategy 
  3. Local Government Act 2003 Report 
  4. Revenue Budget and Council Tax 
  5. Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy 
  6. Savings Programme post consultation 
  7. Capital Programme post consultation 

February/March 

  8. Discretionary Fees & Charges post consultation 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



APPENDIX 2 

Key Budget Assumptions 2022/23 to 2024/25 

  Area of Budget 2022/23  2023/24  2024/25 

        
Council Tax       
General Increase 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 
Social Care Precept 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
Total Council Tax Increase 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 
Increase in property numbers 674 543 556 
LCTSS (Maximum Discount) 85.0% 85.0% 85.0% 
Collection Rate 97.5% 98.0% 98.1% 
        
Business Rates       
Business Rates Multiplier 1.2% 1.6% 1.7% 
Rateable Value Growth (£m) 0 0.500 2.000 
        
Other Resources       
Improved Better Care Fund (£m) 11.917 11.917 11.917 
Additional Social Care Funding (£m) 8.985 10.985 10.985 
Manchester Airport income (£m) 2.348 2.280 2.162 
        
Service Budgets       
Pay Award 1.5% 2.0% 2.0% 
Superannuation - Increase (Decrease) in Contribution Rate 0.0% 0.9% 0.9% 
Superannuation Contribution Rate 20.5% 21.4% 22.3% 
Prices* 0% 0% 0% 
Discretionary Fees & Charges** 2% 2% 2% 
Underlying Waste Disposal Levy 0.4% 1.0% 1.7% 
Underlying Passenger Transport Levy 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 
        
* Price inflation - contractual arrangements and other significant inflation issues will be 
considered on a case by case basis 

** Discretionary Fees & Charges - increase subject to agreed exemptions   
 

 

  

Page 88



APPENDIX 3 

REVENUE BUDGET PRINCIPLES 

1. Budget Preparation 
 

1.1 Service estimates are required at service level for the years 2022/23 to 
2024/25.  The format of the service submissions, which are to be 
supported by appropriate working papers, will be determined by the 
Chief Financial Officer in consultation with Directors. 

 
1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued 

from time to time on local authority accounting practices and other 
related issues. 

 
1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable. 

 
2. Existing Service Level Budgets 
 

2.1 The budget will initially be prepared on the basis that current resources 
support existing service levels and with the exception of the schools 
budget should be varied to reflect: 
(a) The full year effect of previous year’s savings proposals. 
(b) Consequences of the approved capital programme. 
(c) Adjustments in relation to specific ‘one year only’ allocations and 

other time expired funding. 
(d) Other specific Council decisions. 

 
2.2 Most education and related budgets are funded through a specific grant 

namely the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). Separate systems and 
procedures relating to DSG funded budgets operate outside of the 
mainstream budget guidelines.   

 
2.3 Salary budgets are to be prepared with reference to the 2021/22 budget 

(net of any vacancy factor) adjusted for pay awards, increments (where 
appropriate), approved service changes, savings and other approved 
variations. The salary budgets can only be used to employ staff in 
established posts on approved grades in line with the following 
conditions: 

 
(a) All changes to the establishment where Council funding is available 

in full must be approved by Cabinet, or within the requirements of the 
Scheme of Delegation. 
 

(b) All changes to the establishment where resource implications arise, 
even if the costs are met entirely from external funding, must also be 
approved by Cabinet, or within the requirements of the Scheme of 
Delegation. 

 

Page 89



(c) Posts funded from external sources must be established as 
temporary or specific purpose posts unless it can be demonstrated 
that: 
 the external funding is permanent, or 
 specific approval has been given, or 
 future years’ costs can be contained within current budgets. 

 
(d) Directors must balance service requirements against the need to 

manage within their budgets when taking decisions to fill vacant posts 
or employ temporary staff. 

 
3.        Discretionary Fees and Charges 
 

3.1 Fees and charges must be reviewed on an annual basis.  A report will 
be submitted to Cabinet in October each year on proposals for the 
following year.  

 
3.2 Services may bring forward proposals to Cabinet to amend existing fees 

and charges, or to introduce new fees and charges.   
 
4. External Funding 
 

4.1 Wherever possible external funding should be used to reduce pressure 
on current expenditure, thereby releasing resources for redirection into 
priority areas. 

 
4.2 All legal, human resources, financial and administrative support costs 

required to manage grant conditions and fulfill the role of the accountable 
body should be charged, wherever possible, against the funding regime. 

 
5. Integration of Health & Social Care 
 

5.1 From 2018/19 the Local Authority is required to operate a formal Pooled 
Budget arrangement for Health and Social Care, as part of the GM 
Health & Social Care Transformation Funding Programme. 

 
5.2 As part of the pooled budget arrangement, the Council and Heywood, 

Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group will enter into a 
Section 75 Agreement and a Risk Sharing Agreement. 

 
6. Consultation 
 

6.1 Members will take account of consultations with stakeholders at 
appropriate stages throughout the budget preparation process.  

  

Page 90



APPENDIX 4  
 
 
CAPITAL PROGRAMME PRINCIPLES 
 
1. Capital Programme Preparation 
 

1.1 The Capital Programme is compiled at project level for the years 2022/23 
to 2026/27. The format of the capital submissions, which are to be 
supported by appropriate working papers, will be determined by the 
Chief Financial Officer in consultation with Directors.  

 
1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued 

from time to time on local authority accounting practices and other 
related issues. The profiling of capital expenditure into the correct 
financial years and over the project’s development will be key to ensure 
the amount of re phasing of capital resources from one year to another 
is kept to a minimum, and to reduce the amount of revenue budget 
required to finance the project. 

 
1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable. 

 
2.  Principles for the Capital Programme 
 

2.1 Capital Resources are to be used as follows: 
 

 Decisions on the use of Capital Receipts will be considered as part 
of the budget process. 

 
 Un-ring fenced and ring fenced externally funded grants are 

considered on a case by case basis. 
 
 Any new borrowing is considered with the implications for the 

revenue budget position. 
 
2.2 Capital projects for approval are: 

 
 Considered by Portfolio Holders for the service who agree to the 

services requests for funding. 
 
 Completed to ensure all implications of the capital scheme are 

included in the ‘business cases’. 
 
 Inclusive of multi-year schemes with spend profiled accurately across 

the financial years. 

Page 91



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 14 September 2021 
Portfolio Leader of the Council 
Report Author Theresa Edwards 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

3rd & 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. The report provides Members with a summary of corporate complaints and 

compliments received during the third and fourth quarters of 2020/21. 
 

Recommendation 
 
2. It is recommended that Members of the Committee consider and scrutinise 

the information contained in the report and assess whether further 
information or explanation is required regarding any of the issues raised in 
the report. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the 

Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised, and actions 
or decisions may need to be taken to maintain improvement. 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 

Page 92

Agenda Item 12



4.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1 

The Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman’s definition of a 
complaint is “an expression of dissatisfaction about a Council service 
(whether that service is provided directly by the council or by a contractor or 
partner) that requires a response” 
 
In total, 282 new complaints were received during the second half of 2020/21 
across all services.  The majority of the complaints were resolved at stage 
one, with only 17 escalating to stage two and 2 complaints being dealt with at 
stage three.   A total of 119 compliments were received in this reporting period. 
 
There was a slight increase in the number of complaints received during this 
reporting period compared to the same period last year, however, 31.5 % of 
the overall number of complaints received were found to be not upheld 
 
Lessons learned 
 
Complaints provide the Council with valuable feedback to develop and 
improve our services to meet the needs of our customers.  The following are 
examples of changes made by services in response to feedback from 
residents during this reporting period: 
 
Information on the Council’s webpage has been updated with correct number 
for residents to contact the Council with enquiries for Covid and Contact 
Centre staff informed of signposting related to Covid queries they are unable 
to help with. 
 
A final written response will be sent to all applicants who submitted a pre-
planning application enquiry. 
 
Amendments have been made to the Council’s website for information 
relating to requests for a new waste bin where a resident’s bin has been 
stolen.    
 
Highways Service to provide updates on reporting system following 
investigations into reports of potholes, to ensure the most recent information 
is available should the Service receive follow up enquires. 
 
Review undertaken by Revenues and Benefits Service when referring cases 
to Legal Services where legal advice is required for financial assessments to 
improve the referral process. 
 
Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 
 
Details of complaints dealt with by the Ombudsman are presented in a 
separate report which is produced on receipt of the Local Government & 
Social Care Ombudsman’s Annual Review. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
None.  Information has been compiled from the complaints recording system 
used by all services to record complaints and compliments. 

 

Page 93



 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. None of the complaints dealt with in this reporting period had financial 

implications. 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 
 
6. There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 

report. 
 
Complainants have the opportunity to refer their complaint to the Local 
Government & Social Care Ombudsman for up to twelve months from 
completion of the Council’s complaints process; therefore there is a risk that 
the outcome of a future Ombudsman investigation into a complaint may result 
in a recommended financial remedy.  Complaints considered by the 
Ombudsman are reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee annually on 
receipt of the Ombudsman’s annual report. 

  
Consultation 

 
7. Not applicable. 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. No   

 

For Further Information Contact: Theresa Edwards, 01706 923547, 
theresa.edwards@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 94



Appendix 1
CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 3rd & 4th QUARTERS 2020/21 
 
The Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman’s definition of a complaint is “an 
expression of dissatisfaction about a Council service (whether that service is provided 
directly by the council or by a contractor or partner) that requires a response” 

The Council’s Corporate Complaints Policy consists of a three stage process, providing a 
point of appeal at stage three arranged by the Customer Feedback Team for complainants 
who remain dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint to a service. 
 
New complaints received 
 
A total of 282 new complaints were received in the second half of 2020-21. As can be seen 
from the graph below, the number of complaints received by the majority of services 
fluctuated slightly over the four quarters of the year with the lowest number of complaints 
being received in the first quarter. The figures for the first quarter of 2020-21 were significantly 
lower than the Council would normally receive, however, this period fell during the initial 
national lockdown and this may have been a contributing factor on the number of complaints 
received.  
 

 
 
Details of the complaints received in the reporting period are included later in the report. 
 
Year on year comparison 

The graph below compares the total number of complaints received in the second half of 
2020-21 with the same period last year.  As can be seen below, the number of complaints 
received by the majority of services during this reporting period were similar or slightly 
reduced to the previous year.  There was an increase in complaints for Environmental 
Management, however, on reviewing the type of complaints received there was no Page 95



Appendix 1
significant reason for the increase.  Of the overall number of complaints received during this 
reporting period, 31.5% were found to be not upheld. 
 

 

Complaints by Directorate 
 
Details of the nature of complaints received by each Directorate can be found in the following 
tables.  The tables include details of all complaints that were either upheld or partially upheld 
together with the number of complaints that were found to be not upheld.  A number of 
complaints are reported as being ‘out of scope’.  These are complaints where it was 
established that the subject of the complaint was the responsibility of another organisation 
e.g. Rochdale Boroughwide Housing or Riverside Housing and the complaints were referred 
on to be dealt with under the organisation’s own complaints procedure. 
 
AGILISYS 
 

 

 

 
 
 

ECONOMY 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 
Contact Centre Call handling 1 2 
 Advice given / action taken by Advisor 2 1 
 Call waiting times  0 1 
 Not upheld 0 3 
 Withdrawn  1 0 
  Total 4 7 

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 
Economic Affairs Not upheld 0 1 
  Total 0 1 

Page 96



Appendix 1
 

 

 
 

NEIGHBOURHOODS 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 
Environmental Management Missed / continual missed bins 28 22 
 Training facilities at St Mary’s School 22 0 
 Bins not returned to collection point  10 9 
 Replacement caddy liners not left 2 7 
 Actions/attitude of operative 2 13 
 Debris left after waste collection 2 0 
 Neighbouring bins emptied into one bin 2 3 
 Fly tipping / enforcement 2 2 
 Damage to bin  1 0 
 Street Cleansing  1 3 
 Grass / shrub maintenance 1 0 
 Assisted collection 1 0 
 Bin missing following collection  1 0 
 Damage to grass verges  1 0 
 Damage to driveway 1 0 
 Delay in removal of faulty bin 1 0 
 Play area Queen’s Park 1 1 
 Crew removed item from resident’s bin 1 0 
 Info on website re charge for new bin  1 1 
 Response to issues with collections  1 0 
 Recycling box removed by crew  1 0 
 Street cleaning taking place at 6am 1 0 
 Delay in delivery of new bin  1 0 
 Damage to fence post 0 1 
 Lack of response to service request 0 1 
 Charge for replacement bin  0 1 
 New bin request 0 1 
 Black bin liners not left  0 1 
 Not upheld 16 30 
 Total 101 96 

 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 
Planning Pre-planning advice 1 0 
  Not upheld 8 6 
 Ongoing 0 1 
  Total 9 7 

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 
Communications  Not upheld  0 1 
  Total 0 1 

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 
Highways & Property Lack of action re broken paving slabs  2 2 
 Issue caused by blocked gully 1 0 
 Lack of action re defect on pavement  1 0 
 Parking ticket policy  1 0 
 Poor condition of pavement  1 0 
 Actions of Parking Services Officer  0 2 
 Delay in repairing pothole  0 2 Page 97



Appendix 1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOURCES 
 

Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd  Qtr 4th Qtr 
Revenues & Benefits Correspondence sent to old address 0 1 
 Council tax arrears 0 1 
 Not upheld 5 5 
 Out of scope of complaints policy 1 0 
  Total 6 7 

 
Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 
 Legal & Democratic Not upheld 1 3 
 Total 1 3 

 
Complaint outcomes 
 
The graph below shows the percentage of stage one complaints received that were either 
upheld or partially upheld during the second half of 2020-21. The overall percentage was 
similar for both quarters. 

 Lack of gritting  0 1 
 Lack of road markings  0 1 
 Delay in repair of manhole 0 1 
 Quality of pothole repair 0 1 
 Not upheld  3 2 
 Out of scope of complaints policy 1 3 
 Ongoing 0 2 
 Total  10 17 

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 
Strategic Housing Response to empty property enquiry 0 1 
 Not upheld 2 0 
 Ongoing 0 1 
  Total 2 2 

Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 
Public Protection Service received from Pest Control  0 1 
 Lack of action to service request  1 1 
 Withdrawn 1 0 
 Not upheld 2 2 
  Total 4 4 

Page 98



Appendix 1

 
 
Complaints received by Ward 
 
Numbers of complaints reported by Ward are dependent upon customers providing their 
address details.  The graph below shows the numbers of complaints received by Ward during 
of 2020-21.  It also indicates where address details have not been provided or the 
complainant resides outside of the Borough.  Details of complaints received are provided to 
Ward Councillors on a monthly basis.   
 

 
 Page 99



Appendix 1
As can be seen from the graph above, there were some fluctuations in the number of 
complaints received from residents in most wards over the two quarters.  There was no 
evident reason for this, though the increase in the third quarter for complaints received for 
West Middleton, a number of these complaints related to the planning process for a new 
school and concerns for Training facilities at St Mary’s School.  

Service Requests  
 
A large number of complaints received are in fact service requests.  A service request is an 
initial request for service or report of a fault, for example a report of a missed bin, or a pot 
hole that needs to be repaired.  Details are included below to evidence the very low numbers 
of service requests that subsequently lead to complaints.  For example, the total number of 
complaints received by Environmental Management and Highways in the second half of this 
year was 197 and 27 respectively, however; the number of service requests dealt with by 
both services during the same period was significantly higher. 
 
Highways 
 

Service Area Requests Q3 Requests Q4 
Bridges and Structures 1 5 
Highway Maintenance 546 980 
Network Development 29 58 
Network Management /Traffic/Road Safety 108 160 
Parking Services (including School Crossings) 0 0 

   

Total 684 1203 
 
 
Environmental Management 
 

Service Area Requests 
Q3 

Requests 
Q4 

New Wheelie bin request 2143 2116 
Missed bin 1166 1246 

Information/enquiry – street services 30 37 
Fly tipping 1374 1253 

Assisted collection 60 66 
Remove bin 245 335 

Information/enquiry – enforcement 64 97 
Bulky collection 1544 1657 

Tree maintenance 118 162 
Dead animal 31 42 
Dog fouling 57 105 

Other service request – Waste Services 373 494 
Untidy garden 140 192 

Abandoned vehicle  0 0 
Grass/shrub/hedge maintenance 53 38 

Litter bin 36 50 Page 100



Appendix 1
Spillage on road 21 17 

Graffiti  34 33 
Sharps/drugs/paraphernalia 7 11 

Trade waste 6 16 
Fly posting 12 8 

Ragwort/Knotweed 7 7 
Travellers enquiry  3 1 

Caddy liner request  25 29 
Rights of Way  39 59 

    
Total 7588 8071 

 
Compliments 
 
In addition to complaints, compliments are also received from customers and shared with the 
teams concerned.  The resident is always thanked for taking the time to contact the Council 
with their comments. 
 
The graph below shows the total number of compliments received during the second half of 
2020-21.   
 

 
 
A total of 119 compliments were recorded during the first and second quarters, a selection of 
which can be found below.  
 
“Sending a big thanks you to the Heywood Clean and Green Team for the great work around 
Brittania Street” Page 101



Appendix 1
 
“Customer Service Advisor was very helpful and I appreciate all his help. He was totally 
professional throughout the call and he is a credit to Rochdale Borough Council.” 
 
“I just wanted to drop a note of thanks to your bulky waste and bin collection team for the 
work they do, and have done, particularly over the last 12 months. I have had need to utilise 
your bulky waste collections as well as the usual wheelie bin collections. Each time your team 
go about their business with courtesy and professionalism. Quietly getting on with their job 
without disruption to the residents. It has been a tough year and you have continued to deliver 
what I consider to be a wonderful service.” 
 
“I visited Rochdale with my husband and children to visit the Dippy exhibition. I wanted to 
pass on how impressed we were with our visit. Driving into Rochdale we noticed how well 
kept all the grass verges are, and there was a general impression of the centre being well 
maintained and cared for. On arriving at Touchstones we were welcomed by friendly 
reception staff and then took part in the interactive tour. This was well thought out, 
entertaining and informative. Credit must go to all involved in this, it was excellent! And free 
to boot. Walking down to the Dippy exhibition the revedelopment of the town centre and the 
area outside the library with its beautiful planting and greenery was another tick in the box for 
Rochdale. People are often quick to criticise but less so to pass on a compliment!” 
 
“A great big Thank you to all the staff who fixed the man hole cover on Rochdale  
Road East. The service was amazing job was done in record time. Can't fault the service well 
done. So proud to live in a town with a great council.” 
 
“I just wanted to pass on a message from a parent who was expressing her gratitude for the 
food hampers which in her words are ‘absolutely brilliant. The Catering Team should be 
recognised for all their hard work which is very much appreciated.” 
 
“Thank you very very much to the Officer in the Planning Service for all their help yesterday. 
They helped me tremendously and were wonderful, it was a pleasure to speak with them.” 
 
Customer satisfaction with the process 
 
The Customer Feedback Team monitors complaints received and recorded across the 
Council to ensure compliance with complaint policy timescales and consistency in 
implementation of the process. 
 
During the first half of 2020-21, a total of 282 new complaints were received, and of these 
only 17 escalated to the next stage in the complaints process, indicating that the majority of 
customers were satisfied with the response and action taken by the service concerned at the 
lowest level.  

Page 102



1 

 

Report to Cabinet 

 

Date of Meeting 31st August 2021 

Portfolio Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate and Corporate 

Report Author Samantha Smith 
 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

Finance Update Report Quarter 1 2021/22 

 
Executive Summary 

 

1. To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 
Council’s forecast 2021/22 financial position as at the end of June 2021. 

1.1 The Finance Update report contains details of the following: 

 The forecast Revenue outturn position, which is a break even position. The 
General Fund pressure relating to Covid-19 is £14,346k, and is offset by the use 
of government funding and reserves.   
 
There continues to be a pressure on the High Needs Block Dedicated Schools 
Grant (DSG). The forecast 2021/22 in-year pressure is £175k which will leave a 
closing 2021/22 deficit position on the DSG reserve of £5,254k, which is being 
addressed through the Recovery Plan. An update to the current Recovery Plan is 
due to be considered by Schools Forum in the autumn. 
 

 Savings plans of £1,167k ongoing and £8k one off were included in the 2021/22 
budget, as part of the 2021/22 Estimates process. These are currently forecast as 
achieved, on target or to be achieved through mitigating actions. In 2020/21 
unachieved savings of £150k were reported which continue in 2021/22; these will 
be met through the use of Government Grants and through mitigating actions. 
 

 An update on the Health & Social Care Pool Fund opening position. A detailed 
report is to be presented to ICB on 31st August 2021. 
 

 Forecast Capital expenditure of £107,328k; this is net of: 

Page 103

Agenda Item 13



2 

o brought forward balances from previous financial years of £94,703k  
o re-phasing of £56,258k into future years, mainly relating to work that has 

been completed to review and  re-profile the Capital Budget , and  
o Capital budget increases of £11,697k. 

 
 The forecast 2021/22 Collection Fund position of a deficit of £6,062k, which will 

be mitigated by additional Government Section 31 grant of £9,498k, leaving a 
residual surplus of £3,436k.    

Recommendations 

 

2.1 Cabinet notes the forecast 2021/22 financial positions for Revenue, Capital, and 
the Collection Fund as at the end of June 2021, as detailed in section 4. 

2.2 Cabinet notes the emergency delegated decision which has been made for the 
use of the Covid Local Support Grant of £882k to contribute to food vouchers for 
the Summer Break, as shown in section 4.1.2. 

 
2.3 Cabinet approve the commencement of procurement for the Council’s long term 

contracts for insurance detailed in section 4.1.2. 
 
2.4 Cabinet notes the Health & Social Care Pool Budget opening position as detailed 

in section 4.2. 
 
2.5 Cabinet approves the Budget Pressure requests detailed in section 4.3. 
 
2.6 Cabinet notes the forecast achieved Savings target in section 4.4. 
 
2.7 Cabinet notes the net Capital budget changes of £11,697k, which includes the 

return of £400k of budget relating to Link4Life detailed in section 4.6.1. 
 
2.8 Cabinet notes the Capital re-phasing of £56,258k into future years detailed in 

section 4.6.2. 
 
2.9 Cabinet approves the requests to switch budgets within the Economy Service 

and Neighbourhoods Service as detailed in section 4.6.3. 
 
2.10 Cabinet notes the switch between Resources and Neighbourhoods as detailed in 

section 4.6.3. 
 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 

3. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the authority, 
as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are 
spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. 

Page 104



3 

This report focuses on the forecast 2021/22 financial position as at the end June 
2021. 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

4. Revenue Budget 2021/22 
 

4.1 The budget set by Budget Council on 3rd March 2021 was £235,984k: 
 

 
The Revenue Budget Table in 4.1.1 provides detail of budget allocations and the 
estimated 2021/22 financial position. 
 

4.1.1 The forecast position as at the end of June 2021 is a General Fund breakeven 
position  

 Non Covid-19 in-year forecast is a breakeven position. 
 The pressure attributable to Covid-19 of £14,346k is covered by 

government Covid funding and use of reserves. 
 

The table below provides detail by Directorate:  
 

Directorate/Detail Current 
Controllable 
Net Budget 

Forecast 
Controllable 
Outurn Qtr1 

Forecast In-
Year Saving 
(Overspend) 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Adult Care 50,261 50,261 - 
Children’s 47,344 47,621 (277) 
Economy 16,110 16,547 (437) 
Neighbourhoods 52,238 52,307 (69) 
Public Health  19,186 19,186 - 
Resources 12,291 12,122 169 
Total Services Spending 197,430 198,044 (614) 
Contribution from Integrated Pool 
Budget  

106,000 106,000 - 
Contribution to Integrated Pool Budget (106,000) (106,000) - 
Total Pooled Budgets  - - 
Finance Control Corporately Held 
Budgets 

12,117 

 

11,503 614 
Finance Control Budget Pressures 1,469 1,469 - 
Total Finance Control Spending 13,586 12,972 614 
Net Expenditure 211,016 211,016 - 
Uncontrollable Budget Spend 24,968 24,968 - 
Total Budget 235,984 235,984 - 

 

Approved by When Reason for change Amount 
(£'000) 

Budget Council  Mar-21 Approved budget    235,984  
    GRAND TOTAL   235,984  

Page 105



4 

 
The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, which are not related to 
Covid-19 are detailed below, and further detail may be found in Appendix A: 

Service Narrative 
Amount 
£'000 

Adult Care 
The core service provision is expected to break even 
with a pressure from commissioned placements being 
matched by in year savings, mainly from staff 
turnover and one off funding from Health. 

0 

Children's  

As at quarter 1 the overall position on the general 
fund element of the children's budget is a £277k 
overspend which is related to the pressure on SEND 
transport. This is a statutory duty which cannot be 
funded by the dedicated schools grant. 
 
DSG - There is also an overspend on the High Needs 
block Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) of £175k which 
is related to continued growth within SEND. 
Additional national high Needs Funding and a 0.5% 
transfer from the schools block have helped to reduce 
the projected pressure, however the service are 
seeing a big increase in applications for Education 
Health and Care Plans and therefore this may be a 
delayed impact of Covid 19. The forecast cumulative 
deficit position is £5.254m. 

(277) 

Economy 

The Economy Directorate is reporting a potential in-
year pressure of £437k, within the Property Growth 
Fund due to the budgeted savings requirement being 
based on forecast levels of investment to date; as 
potential investments depend upon market forces and 
the availability of suitable opportunities the Council's 
actual level of investment to date is lower than initially 
anticipated and therefore the savings requirement 
does not match operational activity.  Future years 
approved budgets are being realigned to take into 
account current investment levels and so this is a 
non-recurrent pressure. 

(437) 

Page 106



5 

Service Narrative 
Amount 
£'000 

Neighbourhoods 

The Neighbourhoods Directorate is reporting a 
potential in-year pressure of £69k. £195k relates to 
projected shortfalls on income generated from solar 
energy and from bin sales due to the number 
provided free through the appeals process.  Against 
this the Directorate is currently forecasting in-year 
savings of £126k, mainly from delayed filling of 
vacancies. 
 
There is a pressure relating to the Homelessness 
service area due to increased numbers of service 
users and accommodation costs, which can only be 
partially offset by Government Housing Benefit 
subsidy. Although budget provision has been made, 
further corporate funding of £500k has been 
earmarked to address the forecast pressure.  
 
A request is made for £60k recurrent budget pressure 
funding in 22/23 for additional costs which will be 
incurred as a result of bringing the CCTV service in 
house 

(69) 

Finance Control 
 In-year saving relates to reduced borrowing costs 
(deferred and lower rates) plus slightly higher 
investment income received than originally projected. 

614  

Resources 

The Resources Directorate is reporting a potential in-
year saving of £169k.  In addition to the previously 
reported pressures for the Legal Shared Service with 
Manchester City Council in 2020/21, there are further 
pressures as a result of software costs & work around 
the Council Tax Review within Revenues and 
Benefits.  These pressures are mitigated from in-year 
employee savings from vacant posts, temporary 
arrangements and one off funding. 

169 

Total   0 
 

4.1.2  

 The use of Covid Local Support grant received of £882k, to provide food vouchers 
to support vulnerable households for the summer break, has been approved 
through the emergency delegated decision process. The overall cost of the 
initiative over the summer to support households living in poverty through food 
clubs, the food solutions network and other means, is £1,133k. Budgets have been 
identified to meet all costs apart from a £50k shortfall. A budget pressure request 
of £50k was approved as part of the delegated decision process, detailed in 
Section 4.3.   
 

Page 107



6 

 Insurance Tender 2022/23; The Council’s Long Term Contracts with current 
insurers are due to expire 31st May 2022. The Council usually tender on a three 
plus two year basis. The total premium spend for the 2021/22 renewals was just 
over £1.573m.  
 
The last tender took place in 2017 and contained 13 separate lots / policies 
including associated claims handling services. In order to protect the Council 
financially, and comply with certain mandatory insurance requirements, it is 
recommended that insurance is procured to cover the 2022/23 – 2024/25 policy 
years, with the option to extend to 2026/27. Approval is sought to commence the 
tender process and approach the insurance market for quotations. 

4.1.3 The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, due to Covid-19 are 
detailed below: 

Expenditure £'000s 
Adult Social Care           3,838  
Children's Social Care/Education           3,630  
Public Health & Housing           8,526  
Cultural & Related           1,678  
Environmental & Regulatory Services              220  
Finance & Corporate            2,615  
Other services           1,414  
Total forecast expenditure pressure 21,921 
Less funding received for specific Covid-19 grants 
& CCG funding (15,767) 

Forecast net expenditure pressure 6,154 
Income £'000s 
Sales, fees and charges 1,389 
Commercial Income 6,803 
Forecast reduction in income 8,192 
Total forecast pressure 14,346 
Use of 2021/22 unringfenced Government 
Emergency Funding, and Covid Reserve b/fwd 
from 2020/21 

(12,346) 

Forecast Government compensation re Sales, 
Fees & Charges Income, and use of reserves (2,000) 

Forecast 2021/22 net Covid pressure 0 
 

The Government developed an income compensation scheme for lost sales, fees 
and charges for 2020/21 and the first quarter of 2021/22 as a result of the impact 

Page 108



7 

of Covid 19. The Council will be submitting a claim for the quarter 1 pressure. The 
scheme does not compensate the Council for any commercial income losses. 

Work continues to assess the financial impact and timeframe involved relating to 
Covid-19. The longer term implications are being considered to support the Council 
in its financial planning going forward. 

As at 31st March 2021, £8,679k was held in an earmarked reserve to be used to 
offset the post 2020/21 impact of Covid 19, recognising that some of the forecast 
financial impact of the pandemic will not materialise until 2021/22 and future years. 
The reserve is to be used to offset demand led and economic pressures as the 
pressure materialises.  

 

4.2 Health & Social Care Pool Budget 
 

As at the end of June 2021 there is no gap forecast for 2021/22. The risk share 
agreement for 2021/22 makes each Partner responsible for their own pooled 
fund gap. 

The full report for the Health & Social Care Pooled Fund will be presented to 
ICB on 31st August 2021.  

2021/22 Expenditure Budgets 
Opening 2021/22 Budget 

 £000's 

Adults’ Services   

Management, Support and Commissioning                           3,100  

Adults, Older People and Physical Disability                         48,300  

Learning Disability / Mental Health                         60,200  

Acute Health Care                      116,500  

Primary Care - Prescribing                         32,200  

Other Services                           9,900  

Adult Public Health                           7,700  

Total Adult Pooled Services                      277,900  

Children's Services   

Management, Support and Commissioning                           2,800  

Page 109



8 

2021/22 Expenditure Budgets 
Opening 2021/22 Budget 

 £000's 

Children's Early Intervention                           7,200  

Health Community Services                         13,800  

Learning Disability / Mental Health                           8,000  

Special Educational Needs                           4,200  

Acute Health Care                         22,900  

Children 0-19 Public Health                           5,500  

Cared for Children and Safeguarding                         28,600  

Primary Care - Prescribing                           8,600  

Other Services                           1,800  

Total Children's Pooled Services                      103,400  

Total Health and Social Care Pooled Budgets                      381,300  

Contribution from Partners   

CCG (275,300) 

LA (106,000) 

Total Contributions (381,300) 

Budget Gap - 

 

4.3 Budget Pressures 
 

The Budget Pressure Fund for 2021/22 is £2,429k; this includes brought forward 
ongoing budget of £500k and one off funding of £928.6k. The following table 
details requests received for the 1st Quarter to 30th June 2021, and requests 
approved from previous financial years: 

 

Service 
Ongoing 
£000s 

One-off 
£000's 

Total 
£000s Narrative 

Balance Brought 
Forward 500.5 928.6 1,429.1   

Page 110



9 

Service 
Ongoing 
£000s 

One-off 
£000's 

Total 
£000s Narrative 

Base Budget 2021/22 1,000   1,000 Increased allocation 
Total Previous Years 
Allocations 429.6 451  880.6     

Opening Balance for 
2021/22 1,070.9 447.6 1,548.5  

The balance brought forward 
is net of previously approved 
allocations  

Quarter 1 Requests:          

Children’s    50     

Top-up funding has been 
approved in the delegated report 
for Food Vouchers to be 
provided to families throughout 
the Summer break  

Economy 108.4       

Building Control request 3 year 
funding for 3 posts to develop, 
and address sustainability of the 
service: Trainee Technical 
Admin Officer, Trainee Building 
Control officer & Building Control  

Neighbourhoods   92.1     

To fund additional staff, 
marketing, and events 
expenditure relating to the 
Climate Change Emergency 
agenda. Future years funding 
will be sought through the 
budget setting  

Funding Remaining 
2021/22 962.5  335.5 1,298    
Future Year 
Allocations 2022/23          

Neighbourhoods 60       

Budget pressure request for 
CCTV to ensure service 
continuity.  

 

If the requests are approved the balance remaining for budget pressures in 
2021/22 is £1,298k; £962.5k ongoing and £335.5k one off. 

4.4 Savings 
The overall savings target for Services for 2021/22 is £1,175k (£1,167k recurrent, 
and £8k one-off), as approved as part of the 2021/22 estimates process.  

Within the final 2020/21 outturn report there were unachieved savings of £150k. 
These savings continue to be a pressure in 2021/22 and will be achieved through 
the use of Government grant or through mitigating actions within the Service in 
2021/22. 

Page 111



10 

The table below shows the savings for 2021/22, as agreed in the 2021/22 
estimates process, which are all forecast to be achieved, on target or achieved 
through mitigating actions. 

Service Nature of Saving Savings 
Target - 

Ongoing 

Savings 
Target - 
One Off 

Total 
Balance 

to 
Address 

     £'000  £'000  £'000 

Adult Care 
Staffing reduction in Adult Social Care in areas 
not covered by other savings proposals 

           
40    -  

Adult Care Changes to Adult Care charging policy 
           

80    -  

Adult Care 
Staffing realignment Prevention / Recovery 
and Reablement Teams* 

         
119    -  

Economy 

Increased Planning Income from Pre 
Application Charges/Planning Performance 
Agreements 

           
30    -  

Economy Project Manager Capitalisation (NB) 
           

20    -  

Economy Re-letting for health and social care   
             

8  -  

Economy Admin support review 
           

10    -  

Resources Treasury management review  
         

300    -  

Resources Insurance reserve review  
         

300    -  

Resources Revenues and Benefits Service Review 
           

50    -  

Resources Artificial Intelligence - Revenues and Benefits 
           

30    -  

Corporate Leadership and Senior Management Review 
         

188    -  

  Total Savings and Balance to Address       
1,167  

              
8  

              
-    

Page 112



11 

4.5 Transformation Fund 
 

The following schemes have been allocated Transformation funding for 2021/22. 
There are no savings targets attached to these budgets. A brief description of 
funding allocated is listed below: 

 Economy 
Strategic Planning Core Budget: - The transformation funding of £106k has 
been used to supplement the core budget for the Strategic Planning team.  
This has allowed the team to continue to focus on work to support the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework which is an integral part of the growth plans 
for Rochdale and the Covid-19 recovery plan. 
 
One Public Estate (OPE) - Integration Manager & Support Officer: - Funding 
provided of £67k for additional staff to enable participation in partnership 
working around the OPE programme.  The benefits of which include: asset 
rationalisation across the public estate, rental income, capital receipts and 
access to sources of funding. 
 

 Resources 
Council property title and marketing project funding of £19k (Creation of 2 Full 
Time Equivalent (FTE) Post for 24 months (year 1):-Council property title and 
marketing project (Creation of 2 FTE Post for 24 months (year 2):- Having a 
dedicated resource has enabled matters to be completed much quicker which 
has resulted in increased capital receipts and associated legal fees. 
 
Stepping up approach to transformation: - Funding of £45k (2021/22) for a 2 
year Transformation & Reform Lead Role. Whilst currently vacant, the role is 
expected to be advertised in the near future and therefore the remaining 
budget is expected to be spent. 
 
Artificial Intelligence Project: - Funding of £61k (2021/22) for Two Proof of 
Concept projects which are currently being undertaken within Revenues & 
Benefits. The projects are expected to utilise the full budget funding made 
available through the Transformation Fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



12 

 
4.6 Capital Budget 2021/22 

 

The forecast position for the 2021/22 Capital Budget is £107,328k, with spend 
to date of £8,032k (7% of budget).  The table below shows a summary of the 
budget movements to the end of June 2021: 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24   
£'000s £'000s £'000s 

BUDGET COUNCIL MARCH 2021 57,186 32,468 46,760 
Rephasing b/f (from previous years) 105,820  20,850  12,355  
Capital Budget Changes 11,697  (831)    
Rephasing c/f (from previous years) (11,117)    
Rephasing requested Qtr 1 (56,258) 51,258 5,000  
BUDGET AS AT END OF JUNE 
2021 107,328 103,745 64,115 

 

4.6.1 Capital Budget Changes 
Details of the increases to capital budgets are shown in the table below: 

Service Narrative Funding Method 

Capital 
Budget 
Increases 
(Reductions) 
£000's 

Children's 

Adjust Devolved Formula Capital 
budget to reconcile with final 
allocation External Funding 

                  9  

Children's 

Adjust Schools Capital Condition  
budget to reconcile with final 
allocation External Funding 

           1,143  

Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan Funding 
reduction adjustment  External Funding (1,357)  

Neighbourhoods Integrated transport block grant External Funding            1,068  

Neighbourhoods S106 use of grants External Funding                 48  

Neighbourhoods 

Decarbonisation scheme 
adjustment to the Capital 
Programme as grant was not 
confirmed in time for Budget 
Council. 

External Funding         11,062  

Neighbourhoods Middleton Arena Refund  RCCO               124  

Page 114



13 

Service Narrative Funding Method 

Capital 
Budget 
Increases 
(Reductions) 
£000's 

Public Health 

Link4Life Capital Projects, 
Removal of the £0.4m budget for 
the Rochdale Leisure Centre 
Gym Expansion which will no 
longer be going ahead. Borrowing 

              
(400)  

  Total Capital Budget Changes           11,697  
 

4.6.2 As part of the financial monitoring and analysis of ongoing pressures being placed on 
the Council following the Covid 19 pandemic, a review of the Capital Programme has 
been undertaken to reduce the future debt repayment burden on the Council as part of 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy and to understand spend in the current year and 
the impact on the Council’s cash flow. 

 
           There has been a review of 2021/22 capital budgets across the Council to consider 

whether schemes could be re-prioritised, and rephased into future years or reduced.  
The review has categorised projects within these budgets under several categories to 
assist with prioritisation and understanding of the link to revenue costs over and above 
repayment and risk.  

 
Capital Re-phasing requests to the end of June 2021, which have been 
approved by the Chief Finance Officer, are shown in Appendix B (2).  

The estimated revenue savings to be achieved through the rephasing of schemes 
above funded via prudential borrowing have been accounted for in the quarter 1 
Revenue monitoring, and will be included in the 2022/23 Estimates process. 

4.6.3 The following budget switches are requested to fund expenditure: 

Budget 
Switches Service Scheme 
£000s 

Neighbourhoods 
Kirkholt Investment - Scheme underspend is 
requested to be transferred to Balderstone Park (6) 

Neighbourhoods 
Additional Highways Funding Scheme underspend 
is requested to be transferred to Balderstone Park (78) 

Neighbourhoods 

Section 106 - Environmental Management - £84k 
requested to be transferred to the Balderstone 
Park scheme from the Additional Highways 
scheme and the Kirkholt Investment scheme.   84 

Neighbourhoods 
Coroners Service accommodation - request to 
switch budget underspend to CCTV project (87) 

Neighbourhoods 
CCTV Upgrade - Budget from Coroners Service 
Accommodation and current budget is requested to 87 

Page 115



14 

Budget 
Switches Service Scheme 
£000s 

rephase to 2022/23 as project will span multiple 
years 

Economy 

Asset Development Fund - Chamber House Solar 
Farm £2,205k to be switched to Property Growth 
Fund to provide match funding to allow the scheme 
to progress. (2,205) 

Economy 

Property Growth Fund - Chamber House Solar 
Farm £2,205k to be switched from Asset 
Development Fund.  2,205 

Economy 

Rochdale Market - £36k to be switched to fund 
expenditure on Town Centre Residential Strategy 
in 21/22 (36) 

Economy 

Town Centre Residential Strategy:  (£36k) to be 
switched from Rochdale Market to fund 
expenditure in 2021/22  36 

Economy 

Hopwood Old Hall - Feasibility: £50k to be 
switched to Hopwood Hall Refurbishment to form a 
combined Hopwood Hall budget. (50) 

Economy 

Middleton Town Centre Phase 3: Hopwood Hall 
Emergency Works budget to be switched to 
Hopwood Hall Refurbishment to form a combined 
Hopwood Hall budget. (2) 

Economy 

Hopwood Hall Refurbishment: Budget to be 
switched from Hopwood Hall Emergency Works 
(£2k) and Hopwood Hall Feasibility (£50k) to form 
a combined Hopwood Hall budget. 52 

Economy 

Milkstone Road Master Plan: To be switched to 
Rail Corridor Strategy scheme - railway schemes 
are being merged into one code for monitoring 
purposes  (2,248) 

Economy 

East Lancs Railway Castleton Masterplan: £1,230k 
to be switched to form a merged Rail Corridor 
Strategy in 2021/22. (1,230) 

Economy 

Smithybridge Railway Station: £400k to be 
switched to form a merged Rail Corridor Strategy in 
21/22. (400) 

Economy 

Railway Strategy Park & Ride: £233k to be 
switched to form a merged Rail Corridor Strategy in 
21/22. (233) 

Economy 

Rail Corridor Strategy: Several schemes totalling 
(£4,111k) to be merged to form the Railway 
Corridor Strategy. £1,000k to be rephased to 
2022/23. Awaiting the purchase of land at various 
sites. 4,111 

  TOTAL 0 
 

 

 

Page 116



15 

A switch of £2,000k in 2021/22 and £500k in 2022/23 from the Investment Fund 
to the Highways Maintenance in-house service has been approved, using the 
delegated authority of the Chief Finance Officer, Leader and Portfolio Holder. 
This is to allow the project to progress, enabling necessary equipment to be 
purchased in advance of the undertaking planned from 1st April 2022. 

4.6.4 Capital Receipts 

Capital receipts are received on the sale of various assets including land, 
buildings and vehicles. The forecast movements in the Capital Receipts 
Reserve during 2021/22, and provisionally for 2022/23 to 2024/25 are included 
in the table below. 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
Description  

£000s 
 

£000s 
 

£000s 
 

£000s 
Capital Receipts balance as at 1st April 2021 10,867 2,338 2,347 2,847 
Use of Capital Receipts to fund 2021/22 
Capital Programme, including prior year 
schemes rephased into 2021/22 

(8,329)  -  -  - 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund provisional 
2022/23 and 2023/24 Capital Programmes, 
and 2021/22 rephasing into future years 

 - (44) - - 

Earmarked use of receipts to fund other future 
commitments  (2,916) (1,588) (109) - 

Capital Receipts income 2,717 1,641 609 400 
Forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts 
balance as at 31st March 2022 2,338 2,347 2,847 3,247 

 

 The forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts Reserve balance as at the end of 
2024/25 is £3,247k. 

 

4.7 Collection Fund 

4.7.1 The forecast Collection Fund outturn position for 2021/22 is a deficit of 
£6,062k, comprising: 

 
 £7,105k deficit relating to Business Rates. However Section 31 

grant of £9,498k is forecast to be received to offset Extended Retail 
Relief discount given; this will leave a forecast net residual surplus 
of £2,393k.  

 £1,043k surplus relating to Council Tax. 

The recovery of the Collection Fund from the impact of the pandemic is 
uncertain; it continues to be affected by the impact of Covid-19 and Government 
initiatives on businesses and Council Tax payers.  

4.7.2 Table 1 shows the forecast 2021/22 Collection Fund position, and the 
allocation between precepting authorities. 

Page 117



16 

Table 1 – 2021/22 Collection Fund forecast outturn 

 

  
Business 

Rates 
Council 

Tax Total 

  
£'000 £'000 £'000 

Forecast 2021/22 Collection Fund 
(surplus)/ deficit  

7,105 (1,043) 6,062 

Preceptors' share of forecast 
2021/22 outturn 

      

Rochdale BC 7,034 (885) 6,149 

GMCA Mayoral Police & Crime 
Commissioner  

-  (112) (112) 

GMCA Mayoral General  (including 
Fire Services) 

71 (46) 25 

Forecast Outturn (surplus)/ deficit 7,105 (1,043) 6,062 

S31 income - Extended Retail Relief (9,498) -  (9,498) 

Forecast net surplus (2,393) (1,043) (3,436) 
 

The Council’s share of the forecast Collection Fund deficit is £6,149k, which 
will be wholly offset by Government Section 31 grant funding of £9,403k, 
leaving a net surplus position of £3,254k. This surplus position is a positive 
position for the first quarter and will be subject to on-going review throughout 
the financial year. 

The following table provides the explanation of variances relating to Business 
Rates: 

Explanation of variance 

Variation 
to budget, 

£'000 

Forecast decreased net Business Rates income mainly 
due to the government decision to give Extended Retail 
Relief for 2021/22, linked to the Covid19 pandemic; 
Section 31 grant to offset the discount given is received in 
the Council's General Fund.  

9,548 

Actual deficit brought forward from 2020/21 is £2,443k 
lower than had been forecast as part of the 2021/22 
Budget process.  

(2,443) 

Forecast 2021/22 Outturn deficit 7,105 
S31 income - Extended Retail Relief (9,498) 
Net forecast 2021/22 Outturn surplus, after S31 relief (2,393) 

 

Page 118



17 

The following table provides an explanation of variances relating to Council 
Tax: 

Explanation of variance 

Variation 
to budget, 

£'000 
Forecast reduced level of Local Council Tax Support 
discount given due to reduced numbers of Working 
age claimants; however there is uncertainty regarding 
the impact on individuals of the ending of the Covid19 
furlough scheme and issues relating to the economy 

(400) 

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt 
provision, although there is uncertainty relating to the 
on-going impact of Covid 19 on debt collection. 

(300) 

Actual deficit brought forward from 2020/21 was 
£3,133k; £3,476k deficit was forecast as part of the 
2021/22 Budget process.  

(343) 

Forecast 2021/22 Outturn surplus (1,043) 
 

There will be a longer term impact on Collection Fund income which is 
dependent on the recovery of businesses and households. This will impact on 
the Council’s core funding for services. Work is ongoing to assess the longer 
term impact on the Council’s financial position. 

4.9 Alternatives considered 

4.9.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is critical 
to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and are 
targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

The main body of the report provides a detailed analysis of the forecast 
2021/22 Finance Outturn position. 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. There are no significant legal implications arising as a result of this report to the 

Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, but it should be 
noted that debts, which are recoverable, can be enforced by Court action in 
accordance with the Court Procedure Rules. 

 
The impact of Covid-19 pressures relating to additional expenditure and lost 
income is forecast to continue to have an impact on the Council’s financial 

Page 119



18 

position both in 2021/22 and in the medium term.  The 2021/22 budget and 
Medium Term Financial Plan include forecast lower income levels for Business 
Rates and Council Tax due to the pandemic, which is being offset through the 
use of both one off government funding and reserves in the short term. 
However, this cannot be sustained in the longer term. Recovery from the 
pandemic is being closely monitored. 

Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2010 and 2017 
cause uncertainty and financial risk for the Business Rates income retained by 
the Council. The situation is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that any 
changes in the trend for successful appeals are recognised due to the future 
impact on Business Rates income and the impact for the provision for any 
backdated elements. 

 The Valuation Office Agency (VOA) alters rating assessments if new 
information comes to light indicating that the valuation is inaccurate. These 
could relate to a demolition, new property builds or other physical changes to a 
property. The number of alterations, financial impact and timing of the 
revaluations are not within the control of the Council. There is an on-going risk 
that issues decided nationally by the VOA could potentially impact on Rochdale 
BC’s Business Rates income. 

 The future level of collection of Corporate Debt (including Commercial Income), 
Business Rates and Council Tax debt is a potential financial risk, particularly 
with the on-going impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. Collection performance is 
monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that debt is recovered as efficiently and 
effectively as possible, whilst making adjustments to reflect the current 
circumstances, and so that any trends may be highlighted and action taken as 
necessary, at the appropriate time. Debt collection is likely to continue to be 
affected by the impact of Covid-19 in this financial year. Provisions have been 
increased to reflect the increased risk of non-collection. 

Consultation 

 
7. All services engage with the production of the directorate based financial 

information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Corporate, and Opposition Portfolio holder for Finance 
have been informed of the forecast 2021/22 financial position of the Council 
and its implications for future years. The report will be presented to the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 14th September 2021. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. For further information about this 

report or access to any 
background papers contact 
Samantha Smith 

No1 Riverside Floor 2  

Page 120



19 

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith, Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk  

Tel : 01706 924198 

 

  

Page 121

mailto:Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


20 

Appendix A – Revenue Budget ‘Variations to budget’ narrative – Quarter 1 to 30th June 2021 

 

Service Narrative 
Budget 
£'000s 

Forecast 
Spend Variance 

Adult Care Neighbourhoods:- Increase in placement costs offset by one off 
additional income received from Health towards placements 

44,986 44,887 99 

  Boroughwide Services:- Pressures from higher costs commissioned 
places for service users 3,821 4,033 (212) 

  In House Provider Services:-In year saving in staffing costs due to staff 
turnover of £113k 1,304 1,191 113 

  Adult Care Variation to Budget  50,111 50,111 0 
Children's  Cared for Children: - Small underspend on placements. 24,774 24,750 24 
  Early Help/Sure Start: - Staff vacancies to date. 4,998 4,948 50 

  School Support: - Overachievement of income on personnel and 
governors. 1,377 1,296 81 

  
Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND):- Pressure on SEND 
transport due to continued growth in this area, this is a statutory duty. 
Work is ongoing to address this pressure through the Budget process. 

6,477 6,934 (457) 

  Youth Service: - Staff vacancies to date. 9 (16) 25 

  

High Needs Block - Additional High Needs Block funding for 2021/22 
has reduced the pressure from prior year, however the service are 
seeing increased applications for Education Health Care Plan's, this 
may be a delayed impact of covid. This position may increase once the 
growth in the new school year (September) comes through. 

(175) (175) 0 

  Children's Services Variation to Budget  37,635 37,737 (277) 

P
age 122



21 

Service Narrative 
Budget 
£'000s 

Forecast 
Spend Variance 

Economy 

Property Growth Fund: - The overall Property Growth Fund Investment 
Portfolio is forecast to deliver the 1.5% budgeted return on investments 
completed to date.  The reported pressure of £0.437m is due to the 
budgeted savings requirement being based on forecast levels of 
investment to date; as potential investments depend upon market 
forces and the availability of suitable opportunities the Council's actual 
level of investment to date is lower than initially anticipated and 
therefore the savings requirement does not match operational activity.  
Future years approved budgets have been realigned to take into 
account current investment levels and so this is a non-recurrent 
pressure. 

(1,729) (1,292) (437) 

  Economy Services Variation to Budget  (1,729) (1,292) (437) 

Finance Control/ 
In-year saving relates to reduced borrowing costs (deferred and lower 
rates) plus slightly higher investment income received than originally 
projected. 

13,586 12,972 614 

Tax & Treasury Finance Control Variation to Budget 13,586 12,972 614 

 Neighbourhoods 
Environmental Management: - The income target relating to sale of bins 
is not expected to be achieved in full due to a higher than anticipated 
number provided for free through the appeals process (£169k).  This 
pressure is being partially offset by £126k of savings arising from 
delayed filling of vacancies and small savings on fuel and equipment 
budgets  

11,501 11,544 (43) 

  
Strategic Housing: - There is a pressure relating to the Homelessness 
service area due to increased numbers of service users and 
accommodation costs, which can only be partially offset by government 
Housing Benefit subsidy. Although budget provision has been made, 

2,200 2,200 0 

P
age 123



22 

Service Narrative 
Budget 
£'000s 

Forecast 
Spend Variance 

further corporate funding of £500k has been earmarked to address the 
forecast pressure.  

Neighbourhoods Properties: - Pressure in respect of income generated from solar 
energy. 229 255 (26) 

  
Neighbourhoods Service Variation to Budget 

13,930 13,999 (69) 

  Finance Services: - In-year savings due to staffing. 1,759 1,752 7 

 Resources Other Managed Budgets: - In-year savings as a result of vacant posts 
at Finance Manager level. 2,350 2,151 199 
Revenues and Benefits: - In-year savings due to staffing are partially 
mitigating a pressure relating to software and work around the Council 
Tax Discount review. 

1,799 1,834 (35) 

Legal Services: - Pressure within the Shared Legal Service with 
Manchester City Council. 1,805 1,938 (133) 

Human Resources: - In-year savings due to staffing. 1,877 1,812 66 
Governance: - In-year savings due to staffing. 2,074 2,009 65 
Resources Service Variation to Budget 11,664 11,496 169 
Total Variation to Revenue Budget - 2020/21    

- 

 

    
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 124



23 

Appendix B – Capital Forecast Spend by Scheme as at Quarter 1, June 2021 

Service Scheme 
 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

 2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 

 
2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

 
2023/24 
budget, 
£k  

 Total 
budget, 
£k  

Adult Care Better Care Fund 380 380 -  - - 380 
Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant 3,829 2,829 1,000  2,633 2,633 9,095 
Adult Care   4,209 3,325 1,000  2,633 2,633 9,475 
Children's Aiming High For Disabled Child 42 42 -  - - 42 
Children's Devolved Formula Capital 915 915 -  461 461 1,837 
Children's Early Years Capital Grant 19 19 -  - - 19 
Children's New Place Planning 27,833 7,833 20,000  5,200 5,200 38,233 

Children's Schools Cap Condition Programme 5,321 4,821 500 
 

1,808 1,808 8,937 

Children's Special Provision Capital Fund 593 - 593  - - 593 
Children's CWD Residential Home 1,114 1,114 -  - - 1,114 
Children's   35,837 14,744 21,093  7,469 7,469 50,775 

Economy Definitive ROW Improvement Programme 54 54 - 
 

- - 54 

Economy River Roch Flood Storage 1,096 1,010 86  1,250 4,500 6,846 

Economy 
Rochdale Gateways Environmental 
Programme 

17 17 - 
 

- - 17 

Economy Stakehill Industrial Estate 46 26 20  - - 46 
Economy Asset Development Fund 5,288 1,568 3,720  - - 5,288 
Economy Property Growth Fund 23,610 3,815 19,795  20,000 20,000 63,610 

Economy 
Milnrow TC Butterworth Hall Flood Risk 
Mgt 

100 - 100 
 

- - 100 

Economy Turf Hill Flood Risk Mgt 500 500 -  - - 500 

P
age 125



24 

Service Scheme 
 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

 2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 

 
2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

 
2023/24 
budget, 
£k  

 Total 
budget, 
£k  

Economy East Lancashire Railway 326 100 226  - - 326 
Economy Lower Falinge 4 4 -  - - 4 
Economy Heywood South/Junction 19 2,721 300 2,421  - - 2,721 
Economy Railway Strategy Park & Ride 233 - 233  - - 233 

Economy Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study 359 359 - 
 

- - 359 

Economy Pennine Holl Lake Feasibility 23 23 -  - - 23 
Economy Metrolink Feasibility 50 50 -  - - 50 
Economy Birch Fountain & Horse Trough-Middleton 22 22 -  - - 22 

Economy East Lancashire Railway - Castleton Mast 1,230 - 1,230 
 

- - 1,230 

Economy Rail Corridor Strategy - 3,111 -    3,111  - - - 
Economy SmithyBridge Railway Station 400 - 400  - - 400 
Economy Michael Faraday Avenue  3,109 3,109 -  - - 3,109 
Economy Middleton Town Centre Phase 3 2 - 2  - - 2 
Economy Town Centre East Feasibility 393 58 335  - - 393 

Economy Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration 2,619 2,619 - 
 

3,500 4,831 10,950 

Economy Rochdale Market 37 1 36  - - 37 
Economy Town Hall Square PH2 647 647 -  2,200 4,700 7,547 
Economy Drake Street Phase 2 1,055 955 100  100 - 1,155 
Economy Town Centre Schemes 2016/17 958 958 -  - - 958 
Economy Rochdale Town Centre 3 Year Strategy 702 352 350  - - 702 
Economy Hopwood Hall Refurbishment 45 97 -          52  - - 45 

P
age 126



25 

Service Scheme 
 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

 2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 

 
2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

 
2023/24 
budget, 
£k  

 Total 
budget, 
£k  

Economy Town Centre Residential Strategy 2,261 2,297 -          36 
 

- - 2,261 

Economy Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 2,875 2,875 -  - - 2,875 

Economy Milkstone Road Master Plan       
2,248  

            -          2,248  
 

            -                -          
2,248  

Economy Hey/Midd/Litt Town Centre Masterplans 121 121 -  - - 121 
Economy Hopwood Old Hall Feasibility 50 - 50  - - 50 
Economy Town Centre Masterplan 50 50 -  - - 50 
Economy   53,251 25,098 28,153  27,050 34,031 114,332 
Neighbourhoods ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme 566 566 -  444 444 1,454 
Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff) 554 554 -  500 500 1,554 
Neighbourhoods Office 365 450 225 225  - - 450 
Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme 437 437 -  400 400 1,237 
Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund 835 835 -  800 800 2,435 
Neighbourhoods Kirkholt Investment 6 - 6  - - 6 
Neighbourhoods New Cemetery Sites 1,640 807 833  - - 1,640 

Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street Machinery 124 124 - 
 120 120 364 

Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way 127 127 -  80 80 287 
Neighbourhoods Rochdale Cemetery Lodge Repair 94 94 -  - - 94 

Neighbourhoods Section 106 - Environmental Management 1,846 1,888 -          42 
 - - 1,846 

Neighbourhoods 
Townships Capital - Environmental 
Management 

179 179 - 
 - - 179 

Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment 231 231 -  75 75 381 
Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme 2,261 1,242 1,019  1,839 1,777 5,877 

P
age 127



26 

Service Scheme 
 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

 2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 

 
2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

 
2023/24 
budget, 
£k  

 Total 
budget, 
£k  

Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme 288 288 -  293 298 879 
Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group 2,997 2,997 -  1,750 1,750 6,497 
Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan 2,798 2,798 -  2,714 2,714 8,226 
Neighbourhoods Townships Capital - Highways 600 600 -  - - 600 
Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme 100 100 -  100 100 300 
Neighbourhoods N1R Revolving Doors 120 120 -  - - 120 
Neighbourhoods Decarbonisation Scheme 11,062 11,062 -  - - 11,062 

Neighbourhoods Coroners Service accommodation 92 5 87 
 - - 92 

Neighbourhoods Additional Highways Funding 79 1 78  - - 79 
Neighbourhoods J19 Feasibility 23,792 23,792 -  - - 23,792 
Neighbourhoods TFGM Grants - - -  - - - 
Neighbourhoods Developer Contributions 83 83 -  - - 83 
Neighbourhoods Beelines Award - - -  - - - 
Neighbourhoods GM Full Fibre Programme 926 926 -  - - 926 

Neighbourhoods Service Desk System Replacement 110 60 50 
 50 - 160 

Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Order Programme 1,628 1,628 -  1,430 2,419 5,477 

Neighbourhoods Travellers Authorised Stopping Site 46 46 - 
 - - 46 

Neighbourhoods Climate Emergency 1,019 500 519  1,000 1,000 3,019 
Neighbourhoods Car Parking Machines 9 9 -  - - 9 
Neighbourhoods Allotments 2017-18 Manifesto Funding 167 167 -  - - 167 
Neighbourhoods Accelerated Housing 1,561 1,561 -  650 1,705 3,916 
Neighbourhoods Affordable Housing 2,325 2,325 -  - - 2,325 

P
age 128



27 

Service Scheme 
 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

 2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 

 
2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

 
2023/24 
budget, 
£k  

 Total 
budget, 
£k  

Neighbourhoods Customer Transformation Programme 929 800 129 
 - - 929 

Neighbourhoods CCTV Upgrade 522 450 72  - - 522 
Neighbourhoods Library Self Service 20 20 -  - - 20 
Neighbourhoods Extended Library Hours 150 150 -  - - 150 
Neighbourhoods N1R Utilisation 70 70 -  - - 70 
Neighbourhoods Highway Investment Programme 1,333 1,333 -  1,320 - 2,653 
Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School 1,280 1,280 -  - - 1,280 
Neighbourhoods 63,456 60,480 2,976  13,565 14,182 91,203 
Public Health Link4Life Capital Project 4,733 1,297 3,436  1,770 800 7,303 
Public Health 4,733 1,297 3,436  1,770 800 7,303 
Resources Investment Fund 2,500 2,500 -  - - 2,500 
Resources 2,500 2,500 -  - - 2,500 
                 
Total Capital Forecast Position at June 2021 163,986 107,328 56,658  52,487 59,115 275,588 

 

 

 

 

P
age 129



28 

Appendix B (2) – 2021/22 Capital budget rephasing 

Service Narrative 
Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

Funding 
Source 

Adult's 

Disabled Facilities Grant - Funding is 
for adaptations and building works. 
However implementation has been 
delayed due to Covid 19 and the 
inability to enter premises, resulting in 
reduced in year spend which will now 
be implemented in 2022/23. As Covid 
restrictions are being lifted this may 
change during the year. 

1,000 

 
 
 
 

External 

Children’s 

Schools Capital Condition- The 
scheme at Elmwood Primary will 
continue into 2022/2023 due to delays 
in the tendering process. 

500 

 
 

External 

Children’s 

Special Provision Capital Fund- 
Capital investments in the provision 
for pupils with Special Educational 
Needs and disabilities are ongoing 
this year, with work on the Autistic 
Secondary level at Falinge Park and 
will continue into 2022/23 with work 
on Castleton Primary, and Kingsway 
Park High school. 

593 

 
 

 
 
External 

Children's 

New Place Planning: - The 
Department for Education have 
delayed the opening dates of both 
new Free schools so the LA 
contributions will be unspent in 
2021/22. We are liaising with the 
Inclusion Board to decide on a way 
forward for additional SEN places but 
it is unlikely that this will generate any 
significant spend in this financial year. 
The building scheme to increase the 
number of pupil places at Brownhill 
Learning Community ASC is due for 
completion in 2022/23; the schemes 
at Harwood Park, Castleton Primary 
school and to increase dining capacity 
at Falinge Park High school, are due 
to be completed in 2021/22 but this 
may need to be extended into the 
next financial year. 

20,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

External 

Page 130



29 

Service Narrative 
Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

Funding 
Source 

Economy 

River Roch Flood Storage: £1,000k is 
the agreed financial agreement with 
the Environment Agency plus an 
additional £10k capitalised salary for 
2021/22 - the remaining £86k is to be 
rephased to 2022/23 

86 

 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Economy 

Stakehill Industrial Estate: £20k to be 
rephased to 2022/23. This funding is 
to support the ongoing work for the 
Stakehill Business Improvement 
District. 

20 

 
Prudential 
Borrowing 

Economy 

Asset Development Fund - Bradferns 
Asset Development Fund £515k and 
Mossfield Asset Development Fund 
£1,000k to be rephased to 2022/23 - 
budgets rephased to match the 
anticipated timing of planned 
developments/ acquisitions. 

1,515 

 
 
 

Capital 
Receipts 

Economy 

Property Growth Fund - Direct 
development Fund £16,409k, 
Chamber House Farm Solar Project 
£3,925k (including switched (£2,205k) 
and Property Growth Fund £1,666k to 
be rephased to 2022/23 - budgets 
rephased to match the anticipated 
timing of planned developments/ 
acquisitions. 

20,000 
 
 

2,000 

 
 

Invest to 
Save 

 
External 
Funding 

Economy 

Milnrow TC Butterworth Hall Flood 
Risk Mgt: £100k to be rephased to 
2022/23 as work is not expected to 
take place in 2021/22 at this stage. 

100 

 
Prudential 
Borrowing 

Economy 

East Lancs Railway: £226k to be 
rephased to 2022/23. Awaiting the 
outcome of a Transport for Greater 
Manchester feasibility study to confirm 
the location of a platform at Heywood 
Station which affects other 
improvement works. 

226 

 
 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Economy 

Heywood South/Junction 19: The 
budget will support further feasibility 
work on the delivery of the South 
Heywood link road. The construction 
phase will now follow completion of 
the South Heywood Link Rd which is 
programmed for completion summer 
2022 and so £2,421k to be rephased 
to 2022/23. 

2,421 

 
 
 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Page 131



30 

Service Narrative 
Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

Funding 
Source 

Economy 

Rail Corridor Strategy: Several 
schemes totalling (£4,111k) to be 
merged to form the Railway Corridor 
Strategy. £1,000k to be rephased to 
2022/23. Awaiting the purchase of 
land at various sites. 

1,000 

 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Economy 

Town Centre East Feasibility: £335k 
to be rephased to 2022/23 - to be 
rephased to fund any future spend on 
the Rochdale Riverside scheme as 
part of the capital review. 

335 

 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Economy 
Drake Street Phase 2:  £100k to be 
rephased to 2022/23 as part of the 
capital review  

100 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Economy 
Rochdale Town Centre 3 Year 
Strategy : £350k to be rephased to 
2022/23 as part of the capital review 

350 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 
Office 365 - Request made to rephase 
to future year as project will span 
multiple years  

225 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 
New Cemetery Sites -  Request made 
to rephase £800k to 2022/23 to fund 
replacement cremators 

800 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 

Section 106 - £42k requested to be 
rephased into 2022/23 to allow time to 
complete the scheme redesign at 
Robinson's Common following site 
investigations 

42 

 
 

External 

Neighbourhoods 

Vehicle Replacement Programme - In 
the current economic climate the time 
taken to purchase vehicles has 
extended beyond the normal 
timeframes.  A request is therefore 
made to rephase budget required to 
replace refuse collection vehicles and 
sweepers into 2022/23 

1,019 

 
 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 
Service Desk System Replacement - 
Request to rephase to 2022/23 as 
project will span multiple years 

50 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 
Climate Emergency - Request to 
rephase to 2022/23 as project will 
span multiple years 

519 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 
Customer Transformation Programme 
- Request to rephase to 2022/23 as 
project will span multiple years 

129 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 
CCTV Upgrade - Request to rephase 
to 2022/23 as project will span 
multiple years 

192 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Page 132



31 

Service Narrative 
Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

Funding 
Source 

 Total Rephasing through Capital 
Savings process 53,222 

 

Public Health 

Link4Life Capital Projects:- rephasing 
of £3,000k of budget from 2021/22 to 
2022/23 in relation to the 
Replacement Water Activities Centre  

3,036 

 
Prudential 
Borrowing 

   Grand Total of Rephasing 56,258  
  

  

Page 133



32 

Appendix C – Collection Fund 

Business Rates 

The 2021/22 forecast outturn position relating to Business Rates is a deficit 
of £7,105k.  

Description Budget 

2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 
Gross income (86,863) (86,863) -  
Net Small Business Rate relief 8,110 8,110 -  
Mandatory Charitable relief 4,229 4,229 -  
Discretionary relief 608 10,156 9,548 
Empties & Part Occupied relief 4,500 4,500 -  
Net Income (69,416) (59,868) 9,548 
Less:        
Charge re bad debt provision 3,000 3,000 -  
Allowance for cost of collection 326 326 -  
Provision for rateable value 
revaluations  3,911 3,911 -  
Renewable energy schemes 583 583 -  
Net yield (61,596) (52,048) 9,548 
2021/22 payments to 
preceptors/billing authority 61,596 61,596 -  
In year deficit -  9,548 9,548 
Deficit brought forward from 
2020/21 24,265 21,822 (2,443) 
Payments from preceptors/billing 
authority re 2020/21 deficit per 
2021/22 Budget process (21,794) (21,794) -  
2021/22 Forecast deficit/(surplus) 2,471 9,576 7,105 
2022/23 & 2023/24 Payments 
from preceptors re 2020/21 deficit 
as per 2021/22 Budget process (2,471) (2,471) -  
Net deficit -  7,105 7,105 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 134



33 

Council Tax 

The 2021/22 forecast position relating to Council Tax is a surplus of £1,043k.  

2021/22 Forecast Council Tax Income 

Description Budget 

2021/22 
Forecast 
outturn 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 
INCOME       
Income from Council Tax (151,783) (151,783) -  
Income from premium on Empty Properties (509) (509) -  
Council Tax discounts  15,069 15,069 -  
Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTSS) 22,303 21,903 (400) 
Prior year adjustments 203 203 -  
Total income (114,717) (115,117) (400) 
EXPENDITURE       
Charge re bad debt provision 3,442 3,142 (300) 
Total expenditure 3,442 3,142 (300) 
Net income to be raised for precept/ billing 
authority after LCTSS awarded (111,275) (111,975) (700) 
2021/22 payments to Preceptors 111,275 111,275 -  
In year deficit/(surplus) -  (700) (700) 
Deficit brought forward from 2020/21 3,476 3,133 (343) 
2021/22 Payments from preceptors re 2020/21 
deficit as per 2021/22 Budget process (2,235) (2,235) -  
2021/22 Forecast deficit/(surplus) 1,241 198 (1,043) 
2022/23 & 2023/24 Payments from preceptors re 
2020/21 deficit as per 2021/22 Budget process (1,241) (1,241) -  
Net surplus -  (1,043) (1,043) 

 

 

 

Page 135


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	COSActionsList

	5 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/2022
	6 Notes of a meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
	7 Call in: Pennines Township Funds 2021/2022
	Append. 1 for Call in: Pennines Township Funds 2021/2022
	Append. 6 for Call in: Pennines Township Funds 2021/2022
	Append. 5 for Call in: Pennines Township Funds 2021/2022
	Append. 2 for Call in: Pennines Township Funds 2021/2022
	Append. 3 for Call in: Pennines Township Funds 2021/2022
	Append. 4 for Call in: Pennines Township Funds 2021/2022

	9 Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2021-22: Quarter 1 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2021-22: Quarter 1 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2021-22: Quarter 1 Performance Update

	10 Council Tax Discount for Care Leavers
	11 Budget 2022/23 to 2024/25 - Guidelines, Timetable and Budget Update
	4.	External Funding

	12 3rd & 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints
	Append. 1 for 3rd & 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints

	13 Finance Update Report Quarter 1 2021/22
	4.	Revenue Budget 2021/22
	4.2	Health & Social Care Pool Budget
	4.3	Budget Pressures
	4.4	Savings
	4.5	Transformation Fund
	4.6	Capital Budget 2021/22
	4.6.1	Capital Budget Changes




